Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited

Report on the Audit of the Indian Accounting Standard ("Ind AS") Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited (the
“Company"”), which comprises the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended ("the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, its profit including other
comprehensive loss its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing ("SAs"),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the "Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics’' issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS
financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter - Assessment of COVID 19 Impact

We draw attention to Note 46.1.(j) to the Financial Statement, which describes the economic and social
disruption as a result of COVID-19 pandemic of the Company's business and financial metrics including the
Company’s estimates of impairment of loans to customers and investments which are highly dependent on
uncertain future developments.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Ind AS
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the Ind AS financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying Ind AS financial

statements.
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment of financia! instruments (expected credit losses)

(as described in note 46.1 of the standalone Ind AS financial statements)

Ind AS 109: Financial Instruments ("Ind AS 109")
requires the Company to provide for impairment of
its Loan & Advances and Investment receivables
("Financial Instruments”) using the Expected Credit
Losses ("ECL") approach. ECL involves an estimation
of probability-weighted loss on Financial Instruments
over their life, considering reasonable and
supportable information about past events, current
conditions, and forecasts of future economic
conditions which could impact the credit quality of
the Company'’s loans and advances.

In the process, a significant degree of judgement has

been applied by the management for:

a) Defining qualitative/ quantitative thresholds for
‘significant increase in credit risk’ ("SICR”) and
‘default’.

b) Determining effect of less frequent past events
on future probability of default.

c) Grouping of borrowers based on homogeneity by
using appropriate statistical techniques;

d) Determining macro-economic factors impacting
credit quality of receivables;

Impact of COVID-19

The spread of COVID-19 has severely impacted many
economies around the globe. Businesses are being
forced to cease or limit operations for long or
indefinite periods of time. Measures taken to contain
the spread of the virus, including travel bans,
quarantines, social distancing, and closures of non-
essential services have triggered significant
disruptions to businesses, resulting in an economic
slowdown and economic uncertainties. Measures
have also been taken by the Government and the
Reserve Bank to ease the burden on businesses from
hardship, pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India
circular dated August 6, 2020 for “"Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises (MSME) sector - Restructuring
of Advances” and "Resolution Framework for COVID-
19-related Stress” ("RBI circulars”) allowing lending
institutions to implement a resolution plan in respect
of its eligible exposures, subject to specified
conditions. In management’'s view and considering
the guidance provided by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ('ICAl'), providing moratorium
to borrowers at a mass scale, based on RBI
directives, by itself is not considered to result in a
SICR for such borrowers. The Company has recorded
a management overlay as part of its ECL, to reflect
among other things an increased risk of deterioration
in macro-economic factors caused by COVID-19
pandemic. Given the unique nature and scale of the
economic impact of this pandemic, the
macroeconomic overlay estimate is based on various
highly uncertain and unobservable factors. In

Our audit procedures included considering the
Company's accounting policies for impairment of
Financial Instruments and assessing compliance
with the policies in terms of Ind AS 109 and with
the governance framework approved by the
Board of Directors pursuant to Reserve Bank of
India guidelines issued on March 13, 2020 ("the
RBI Guidelines”).

Read and assessed the Company’s policy with
respect to one-time restructuring offered to
customers pursuant to the "Micro, Small and
Medium  Enterprises (MSME) sector -
Restructuring of Advances” and "Resolution
Framework for COVID-19-related Stress” issued
by RBI! on August 6, 2020 and tested the
implementation of such policy on a sample basis.

Evaluated management estimates by
understanding the process of ECL estimation and
related assumptions and tested the controls
around data extraction and validation.

Assessed the criteria for staging of loans based
on their past-due status to check compliance
with requirement of Ind AS 109. Tested a sample
of performing (stage 1) loans to assess whether
any SICR or loss indicators were present
requiring them to be classified under stage 2 or

Assessed the additional considerations applied
by the management for staging of loans as SICR

Tested the ECL model, including assumptions
and underlying computation. Tested the input
data used for determining the PD and LGD rates
and agreed the data with the underlying books of
accounts and records.

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation
of ECL provision performed by the Company.

Read and assessed the adequacy of disclosures
included in the Ind AS financial statements in
respect of expected credit losses with the
requirements of Ind AS 107 Financial
Instruments: Disclosure (“Ind AS 107") and 109.




Chartercd Accountants

Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited
Auditor’s report for the year ended March 31, 2021

Page 3 of 10

accordance with the guidance in Ind AS 109, the
macroeconomic overlay estimate takes into account
reasonably and supportable information without
incurring significant cost. The actual credit losses
could be significantly different than the ECL
estimates prepared by the Company depending upon
the impact and duration of the pandemic and various
regulatory and policy measures announced by the
Government.

In view of the high degree of management’'s
judgement involved in estimation of ECL,
accentuated by the COVID-19 pandemic, it is a key
audit matter.

Information Technology System

The financial accounting and reporting systems of the
Company are fundamentally reliant on IT systems and
IT controls to process significant transaction
volumes. Automated accounting procedures and IT
environment controls, which include IT governance,
general [T controls over program development and
changes, access to programs and data and IT
operations, are required to be designed and to
operate effectively to ensure accurate financial
reporting.

Therefore, due to the pervasive nature and
complexity of the IT environment, the assessment of
the general IT controls and the application controls
specific to the accounting and preparation of the
financial information is considered to be a key audit
matter.

We performed the following procedures, assisted by
specialized IT auditors on the IT infrastructure and
applications relevant to financial reporting:

¢ Tested the design and operating effectiveness of
IT access controls over the information systems
that are critical to financial reporting.

e Tested IT general controls (logical access,
changes management and aspects of IT
operational controls). This included testing that
requests for access to systems were
appropriately reviewed and authorized.

o Tested the Company’s periodic review of access
rights. We inspected requests of changes to
systems for appropriate approval and
authorization.

¢ In addition to the above, we tested the design
and operating effectiveness of certain
automated and IT dependent manual controls
that were considered as key internal controls
over financial reporting.

¢ Where deficiencies were identified, we tested
compensating controls or performed alternate
procedures.

Other Information

The Company'’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Directors Report but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on

are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also inciudes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going

concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that

may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. Howeve ,{m
/ij,"' '\(b R\
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future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure 1" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2" to this report;

(@ In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2021 has been paid /
provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act;
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

i The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

fii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Al Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

('\f‘:./\\/f/_’- %—«\

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership Number: 102102

UDIN: 21102102AAAAKJ7448

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: June 4, 2021
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Annexure 1 referred to under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our report
of even date

Re: Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited ("the Company”)

()(a)

() (b)

(i)(c)

(i)

@iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)(a)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
location of fixed assets.

Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of immovable
properties included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the Company.

The Company’'s business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under
paragraph 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in
the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(iii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented
upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186
of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Company is not in the business of sale of any goods.
Therefore, in our opinion, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, cess and
other statutory dues applicable to the Company have generally been regularly deposited with the
appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay in a few cases in goods and service tax.
The provisions relating to duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and cess are not applicable

to the Company.

(vii){b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of

(vii)(c)

(viii)

(ix)

provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and services tax and other statutory
dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable. The provisions relating to duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and cess are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income-tax, goods and
service tax, service tax, value added tax and cess which have not been deposited on account of dispute.
The provision relating to sales tax, custom duty, excise duty and value added tax are currently not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank or
government or dues to debenture holders.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not raised
any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer. Further, money raised by the Company
by way of non-convertible debentures and term loans were applied for the purpose for which those were
raised, though idle/ surplus funds which were not required for immediate utilization were gainfull
invested in liquid assets payable on demand.
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(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

{xvi)

For S.R.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purposes of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we
report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company by the officers and employees of the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanation given by the management, the managerial remuneration
has been paid in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xi) of the
order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under
clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the Company and, not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section
192 of Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

Batliboi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Lfc/

per Shrawan Jalan
Membership Number: 102102

Partner

Q 19A
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UDIN: 21102102AAAAKJ7448 .

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 4, 2021
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF EDELWEISS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements of Edelweiss
Housing Finance Limited ("the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAl”). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company'’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these
standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards
on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls and, both issued by the ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to these standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to these standalone financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
these standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to these standalone
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

o

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership Number: 102102

UDIN: 21102102AAAAKJ7448

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: June 4, 2021



Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021
(Currency @ Indian rupees i milhions)

As at

A~ at

Note March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
ASSETS
Financial asscts
Cash and cash equivalents 6 9.455.81 4.929.16
Bunk balances other than cash and cash equivalents 7 835.30 739.32
Sceurities held for trading N 155.83 -
Trade receivables 9 104.02 38.40
Loans 10 35,958.59 43.200.62
Investments 11 1,600.86 1.044.73
Other financial assets 12 916.75 24492
49,027.16 50.217.21
Non-financial assets
Current tax asscts (net) 13 21.86 7.38
Deferred tax assets (net) 14 - 21.25
Property. plant and equipment 13 118.28 203.83
Intangible assets under development 7.10 1.45
Other intangible assets 16 2.27 346
Other non- financial assets 17 134.33 53.68
283.84 291.05
TOTAL ASSETS 49,311.00 50.508.26
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 18 72.28 85.37
Debt securities 19 11,676.75 10.091.57
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 20 22,628.38 27.992.02
Subordinated liabilities 21 508.61 508.6!
Other financial liabilitics 22 6,373.14 3.948.80
41,259.16 42.626.37
Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) 23 16.90 106.03
Provisions 24 37.62 25.34
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 14 9.18 .
Other non-financial liabilites 25 360.26 59.78
423.96 191.15
Equity
Equity share capital 26 693.50 693.50
Other equity 27 6,934.38 6.997.24
7,627.88 7.690.74
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 49,311.00 50.508.26

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
hartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number : 301003E' E300005

L, o S

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership No. 102102

Rajat Avasthi
MD & CEO
DIN: 07969623 k

RS

Manish Dhanuka
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Mumbai
Date : June 04. 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited

S

Deepak Mittal
Director
DIN: 00010337

(s efonety

Riddhi Parekh

Company Secretary

Membership No. A20867



Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited

Statement of Protit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Currency = Indian rupees inmilhons)

Revenue from operations
Interest income

Dividend mncome

Fee and commission income

Net gain on fair value changes
Total Revenue from operations

Other income
Total Revenue
Expenses
Finance costs

Impairment on financial instruments
Employee benefits expense

Depreciation. amortisation and impairment

Other expenses
Total expenses

Loss before tax
Tax expenses:
Current tax

(D) Current tax

(2) Short ' (Excess) provision for carlicr years

Deferred tax
(1) MAT credit entitlement
(2) Deferred tax (net)
Profit for the year

Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plans
Less: Income tax relating to items that will not be

reclassified to profit or loss

Other Comprehensive Income / (loss)

Total Comprchensive Income

Earnings per cquity share (Face value of Rs. 10 each):

(a) Basic
(b) Diluted

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial statements,

As per our report of even date attached.

For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
hartered Accountants

Al Firm Registration Number : 301003E/ E300005

‘sfc»-s’”‘ ;,Q/P

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership No. 102102

Place : Mumbai
Date : June 04, 202

Note

L 12
=)

<

3l

32
33
34

15&16

35

36.1 & 36.2

36.3

40
36.3

38

Rajat Avasthi
MD & CEO
DIN: 07969623

N \\W

\ Manish Dhanuka

Chief Financial Officer

For the year ended
March 31. 2021

For the vear ended
Narch 31,2020

5.026.66 5.654.40
1.80 )
341.46 357.15
117.25 39.67
5.487.17 6.051.22
23.37 22.68
5,510.54 6.073.90
3,892.83 4.193.35
511.40 407.06
558.02 690.71
56.40 78.88
572.61 720.27
5,591.26 6.090.27
(80.72) (16.37)
(51.25) 88.66
39.21 99.23
(90.46) (10.57)
(66.76) (120.58)
- 19.82
(66.76) (140.40)
37.29 15.55
(2.95) (1.44)
0.74 0.36
(221) (1.08)
35.08 14.47
0.54 0.22
0.54 0.22

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited

Deepak Mittal
Director
DIN: 00010337

Riddhi Parckh
Company Secretary

Membership No. A20867



Idelweiss Housing Finance Limited
Statement of Cash flows for the vear ended March 31,2021

(Curreney - Indian rupees in mithons

A Cash flow from operating activities

Loss before tax

Adjustments for

Depreciation. amortisation and tmpairment
Impairment on financial instruments
Interest on lease Labilities

Loss (Gain) on sale of tixed assets

Operating cash flow before working capital changes

Add (Less): Adjusiments for working capital changes
Decrease/(Increase) in Receivables

Decrease (Increase) in Stock m trade

Decrease/(Increase) in Receivables from financing business (net)
Decrease (Increase) in Other financial assets
Decrease/(Increase) in Investments

Decrease/(Increase) in Other non financial assets

Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payables

Increase . (Decrease) in Non financial liabilities and provisions
Increase / (Decrease) in Other financial liability

Cash flow from operations
Income taxes paid
Net cash generated from operating activities -A

B Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of Property. plant and equipment and Intangible assets

Decrease/(Increase) in Capital Work-in-progress and Intangibles under

development
Sale of Property. plant and equipment

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities - B

C Cash flow from financing activities
Increase / (Decrease) in Debt securities '
Increase / (Decrease) in Borrowings other than debt securities '
Repayment of lease obligations
Net cash used in financing activities - C

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalent as at the beginning of the year (refer note 6)

Cash and cash equivalent as at the end of the year (refer note 6)

Operational cash flows from interest
Interest paid
Interest received

Notes:

For the year ended
March 31,2021

For the year ended
March 31,2020

(80.72) 116.37)
56.40 78.88
S11.40 407.06
14.88 18.78
1.76 0.59
509.72 488.94
(45.56) (49.97)
(155.83) -
6,730.63 9.991.33
(767.81) (841.16)
(556.13) (1.044.73)
(80.65) (5.27)
(13.09) (138.89)
309.80 (80.04)
2,236.37 2373.10
8,167.45 10.693.32
(52.36) (131.84)
8,115.09 10.561.48
(23.70) (4430
(5.65) 10.13
46.28 2.90
16.93 (31.27)
1,793.02 (2.568.86)
(5,360.01) (3.573.68)
(38.38) (52.11)
(3,605.37) (6.194.65)
4,526.65 4.335.56
4,929.16 593.60
9,455.81 4.929.16
3,709.48 4.002.86
4,259.83 5.282.27

L. Cash receipts and payments for transaction in which the turnover is quick. the amounts are large. and the maturities are short are presented on net

basis in accordance with Ind AS-7 Statement of Cash Flows.

2. For disclosure relating to changes in liabilities arising from financing activities. refer note 37
3. Cash flow statement has been prepared under indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 prescribed under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)

Rules. 2015 under the Companies Act, 2013.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
C Al Firm Registration Number : 301003E/ E300005

[\fc w b

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership No. 102102

Place : Mumbai
Date : June 04, 2021

Rajat Avasthi
MD & CEO
DIN: 07969623

~.\W"

Manish Dhanuka

hief Financial Officer

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited

3

Deepak Mittal
Director
DIN: 00010337

T (Gl sk

Riddhi Parekh
Company Secretary
Membership No. A20867
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Ldelweiss Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2021

I. Corporate Information:

Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited ("EHFL" or “the Company ) is a public limited company domiciled and
incorporated on May 30. 2008 under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The Company
is subsidiary of Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited. The Company is registered as Housing finance
institution (without accepting public deposit) with the National Housing Bank (NHB) under section 29A of
the NHB Act, 1987. registration no. is 03.0081.10.

The Company’s primary business is providing loan to Retail customers for construction or purchase of
residential property, loan against property and loans to real estate developers.

2. Basis of preparation:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015 (as amended from time to
time).

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments such as, derivative financial instruments, and other financial instruments held for trading, which
have been measured at fair value. The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values
are rounded to the nearest million, except when otherwise indicated.

2.1 Presentation of financial statements:

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity in compliance with the Division HI of the
Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months
after the reporting date (current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (non—current) is
presented in “Note 41-Maturity Analysis of assets and liabilities™.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only
offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net
basis in all of the following circumstances:

e The normal course of business
o The event of default
o The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and or its counterparties

3. Significant accounting policies
3.1 Recognition of Interest income and Dividend income
3.1.1 Effective Interest Rate (EIR):

Under Ind AS 109 interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method
for all financial instruments measured at amortised cost. The EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the financial instrument or,
when appropriate a shorter period to the gross carrying amount of financial instrument.

The EIR is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The Company recognises interest income using a rate
of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of
the loan. Hence, it recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates charged at various
stages, and other characteristics of the product life cycle including prepayments penalty
interest and charges.

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other
than credit risk, the adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying
amount of the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income.




Ldelweiss Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statement tor the year ended March 31, 2021

3.1.2 Interest Income:

The company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of
financial assets other than credit-impaired assets.

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is. therefore. regarded as "Stage 3. the
Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the amortised cost (net of expected
credit loss) of the financial asset. If the financial assets cure and is no longer credit-impaired.
the Company reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis.

Penal interest income on delayed EMI or pre EMI is recognised on receipt basis.

3.1.3 Fee and Commission Income
Fee and commission income include fees other than those that are an integral part of EIR. The
Company recognises the fee and commission income in accordance with the terms of the
relevant contracts / agreement and when it is probable that the Company will collect the
consideration.

3.1.4 Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive dividend is established

by the reporting date.

3.1.5. Other Income
Other Income represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and is
recognised when the right to receive the income is established as per the terms of the contract.

Other ancillary charges are recognized upon realisation.
3.2 Financial Instruments:
3.2.1 Date of recognition:

Financial assets and liabilities with exception of loans and borrowings are initially recognised
on the trade date, i.e. the date the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. This includes regular way trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the
market place. Loans are recognised when funds are transferred to the customers’ account. The
Company recognises borrowings when funds are available for utilisation to the Company.

3.2.2 Initial measurement of financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate.
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

3.2.3 Classification and Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities:

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing
the assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

e Amortised cost

o Fair value through other comprehensive income [FVOCI)

¢ Fair value through profit or loss [FVTPL]

The Company measures debt financial assets that meet the following conditions at amortised

cost:
o the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold

financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and




Edelhweiss Housing FFinance [Limited
Notes to the financial statcment for the year ended March 31, 2021

¢ the contractual terms ot the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the tollowing conditions are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

¢ the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets: and

+ the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The changes in carrying value of
financial assets is recognised in profit and loss account.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The changes in fair
value of financial assets is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.

The Company measures all financial assets classified as FVTPL at fair value at each reporting
date. The changes in fair value of financial assets is recognised in Profit and loss account.

3.3 Financial Assets and Liabilities:

3.3.1

3.3.2

Financial assets held for trading:

The Company classifies financial assets as held for trading when they have been purchased
primarily for short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a portfolio of
financial instruments that are managed together, for which there evidence of a recent pattern of
short-term profit is taking. Held-for-trading assets are recorded and measured in the balance
sheet at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in net gain on fair value changes.

Debt securities and other borrowed funds:
The Company measures debt issued and other borrowed funds at Amorised cost at each

reporting date. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
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Notes to the tinancial statement for the year ended March 31,2021
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3.3.4

Financial Guarantee:

Financial guarantees are contract that requires the Company to make specified payments to
reimburse to holder tor loss that it incurs because a specified debtor tails to make payment when
it is due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantec issued or commitments to provide a loan at below market interest rate are
initially measured at fair value and the initial fair value is amortised over the life of the guarantee
or the commitment. Subsequently they are measured at higher of this amortised amount and the
amount of loss allowance.

Loan Commitments:

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which. the Company is required to provide
a loan with pre-specified terms to the customer over the duration of the commitment. Undrawn
loan commitments are in the scope of the ECL requirements.

3.4 Reclassification of Financial assets and liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition. apart from
the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of. or terminates a business line.
The Company didn't reclassify any of its financial assets or liabilities in current year and previous year.

3.5 Derecognition of financial Instruments:

3.5.1

Derecognition of financial asset

A financial asset (or. where applicable a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive contractual cash flows from the
financial asset have expired. The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both
transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if. and only if, either

o The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

e It retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumed
a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows in full without material delay to third party
under pass through arrangement.

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows of a financial asset (the 'original asset’), but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay those cash flows to one or more entities (the 'eventual recipients’). when all of
the following conditions are met:

o The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has
collected equivalent amounts from the original asset. excluding short-term advances with
the right to full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at market rates.

o The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual
recipients.
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The Company has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients without
material delay. In addition. the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows. except for
investments in cash or cash equivalents including interest earned. during the period between the
collection date and the date of required remittance to the eventual recipients.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:
e The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset: or

¢ The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if. the transferee has the practical
ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability
unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

The Company also derecognises a financial asset, when the terms and conditions have been
renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new financial asset, with the
difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss. to the extent that an impairment loss has
not already been recorded.

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification
does not result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original
EIR, the Company records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has
not already been recorded.

3.5.2 Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original
financial liability and the consideration paid, including modified contractual cash flow
recognised as new financial liability, is recognised statement of profit or loss.

3.6 Impairment of financial assets:

The Company records provisions based on expected credit loss model ("ECL”) on all loans. other
financial assets not measured at FVTPL together with undrawn loan commitment and financial guarantee
contracts, in this section all referred to as “Financial instrument™. Equity instruments are not subject to
impairment.

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. A credit loss is the difference between the cash
flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects
to receive discounted at the original effective interest rate. Because ECL consider the amount and timing
of payments, a credit loss arises even if the entity expects to be paid in full but later than when
contractually due.

Simplified Approach

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment
loss allowance on portfolio of its receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed
default rates over the expected life of the receivables. However, if receivables contain a significant
financing component, the Company chooses as its accounting policy to measure the loss allowance by
applying general approach to measure ECL.
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General Approach

For all other financial instruments. the Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition. If. on the other hand. the credit risk on
the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition. the Company measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses
(12m ECL). The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition instead of an evidence
of a financial asset being credit-impaired at the reporting date or an actual default occurring.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast. 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default (PD), loss given
default (LGD) (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. As for the exposure at default (EAD), for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date: for loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting date,
together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by default date determined
based on historical trend. the Company’s understanding of the specific future financing needs of the
debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information.

Company categories its financial assets as follows:

Stage 1 Assets:

Stage 1 assets includes financial instruments that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date. For these assets, 12-month ECL
(resulting from default events possible within 12 months from reporting date) are recognised.

Stage 2 Assets:
Stage 2 Assets includes financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition For these assets lifetime ECL (resulting from default events possible within 12 months

from reporting date) are recognised.

Stage 3 Assets:
Stage 3 for Assets considered credit-impaired the Company recognises the lifetime ECL for these loans.

The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

Company recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

The expected credit losses on the loan commitment have been recognised together with the loss
allowance for the financial asset.

The Company’s product offering includes a working capital facilities with a right to Company to cancel
and/or reduce the facilities with one day’s notice. The Company does not limit its exposure to credit
losses to the contractual notice period, but, instead calculates ECL over a period that reflects the
Company's expectations of the customer behaviour, its likelihood of default and the Company s future
risk mitigation procedures, which could include reducing or cancelling the facilities.
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3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

Collateral Valuation:

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets. the Company seeks to use collateral. where possible. The
collateral comes in various forms. such as cash. sccurities. letters of credit guarantees. real estate.
receivables. inventories. other non-tinancial assets and credit enhancements such as netting agreements,
Collateral. unless repossessed. is not recorded on the Company 's balance sheet. However. the fair value
of collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. It is generally assessed. at a minimum. at inception and re-
assessed on a periodic basis. However. some collateral. for example. securities relating to margin
requirements. is valued daily.

To the extent possible, the Company uses active market data for valuing financial assets held as
collateral. Other financial assets which do not have readily determinable market value are valued
using models.

Collateral Repossessed:

The Company’s policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset can be best used for its internal
operations or should be sold. Assets determined to be useful for the internal operations are transferred to
their relevant asset category at the lower of their repossessed value or the carrying value of the original
secured asset. Assets for which selling is determined to be a better option are transferred to assets held
for sale at their fair value (if financial assets) and fair value less cost to sell for non-financial assets at
the repossession date in, line with the Companys policy.

In its normal course of business. the Company does not physically repossess properties or other assets
in its retail portfolio, but engages external agents to recover funds, generally at auction, to settle
outstanding debt. Any surplus funds are returned to the customers/obligors. As a result of this practice,
the residential properties under legal repossession processes are not recorded on the balance sheet.

Write-Offs:

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has no
reasonable expectation of recovery.

Forborne and modified loan:

The Company sometimes makes concessions or modifications to the original terms of loans as a response
to the borrower’s financial difficulties, rather than taking possession or to otherwise enforce collection
of collateral. The Company considers a loan forborne when such concessions or modifications are
provided as a result of the borrower’s present or expected financial difficulties and the Company would
not have agreed to them if the borrower had been financially healthy. Indicators of financial difficulties
include defaults on covenants, or significant concerns raised by the Credit Risk Department. Forbearance
may involve extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan conditions. Once the
terms have been renegotiated, any impairment is measured using the original EIR as calculated before
the modification of terms. It is the Company s policy to monitor forborne loans to help ensure that future
payments continue to be likely to occur. Derecognition decisions and classification between Stage 2 and
Stage 3 are determined on a case-by-case basis. If these procedures identify a loss in relation to a loan,
it is disclosed and managed as an impaired Stage 3 forborne asset, until it is collected or written off.

Determination of Fair Value:

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each reporting date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either;

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
® Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
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The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability. assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses
valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value. maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. In order to show how fair values have been derived. financial instruments are
classitied based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques. as summarised below:

Level 1 financial instruments:

Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement date. The Company
considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and
liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes
available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments:
Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant. are derived from directly or
indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life.

Level 3 financial instruments:

Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period. The Company periodically reviews its valuation techniques
including the adopted methodologies and model calibrations.

Therefore. the Company applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated with its financial
instruments measured at fair value. which include a portfolio-based approach that estimates the expected
net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the individual assets, in order to reflect the credit
risk of the individual counterparties for non-collateralised financial instruments.

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument basis and
reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting period.

3.12 Leases:
Company as a lessee:
The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the partial retrospective approach.

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases,
except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right of use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised. initial direct costs incurred,
and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the assets.
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Lease liabilitics

At the commencement date of the lease. the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the Icase term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable. variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate. and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. In calculating the present value of lease payments. the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable. After the commencement date. the amount of lease liabilities is increased to
reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition. the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification. a change in the lease term, a change
in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used
to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

Short term lease

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use asset and lease liabilities for short term leases
of property that has lease term of 12 months or less. The Company recognises lease payment associated
with these leases as an expense on a straight line basis over lease term.

Company as lessor:

The Company’s accounting policy under Ind AS 116 has not changed from the comparative period. As
a lessor the Company classifies its leases as either operating or finance leases. A lease is classified as a
finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the
underlying asset and classified as an operating lease if it does not.

3.13 Earnings Per Share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity
sharcholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to
issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed
by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by weighted average
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average number
of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of al! potential equity shares.
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3.14 Retirement and other employee benefit:
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3.14.1

3.14.2

3.14.3

3.144

Provident fund and national pension scheme:

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund and national pension scheme which
is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Gratuity:

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in
respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit
that the employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, that
benefit is discounted to determine its present value. and the fair value of any plan assets. if any,
is deducted. The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on
independent actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability). are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCT in the period in which they occur.

Remeasurement are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Compensated Absences:

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of their
annual leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company recognises the
charge in the statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on such non-vesting
accumulated leave entitlement based on a valuation by an independent actuary. The cost of
providing annual leave benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Equity-settled share-based payments and Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs):

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are granted by the ultimate parent Company.
These are measured by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
These includes Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs) where the right to receive the difference
between the SAR price and the market price of equity shares of the ultimate parent Company
on the date of exercise, either by way of cash or issuance of equity shares of the ultimate parent
Company, is at the discretion of the ultimate parent Company. These are classified as equity
settled share based transaction.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is
expensed over the vesting period. based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the "ESOP
reserve’. In cases where the share options granted vest in instalments over the vesting period.
the Group treats each instalment as a separate grant, because each instalment has a different
vesting period, and hence the fair value of each instalment differs.
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3.15 Property, plant and equipment:

Property plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day-—to-day servicing. less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected useful life are
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology. as appropriate. and treated as
changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent costs incurred on an item of property. plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying
amount thereof when those costs meet the recognition criteria as mentioned above. Repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties
under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives. Depreciation is provided on a written
down value basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended use or put to use whichever is earlier.
In respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided upto the date of disposal.

As per the requirement of Schedule IT of the Companies Act. 2013, the Company has evaluated the useful
lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part C of the Schedule II for
calculating the depreciation. The estimated useful lives of the fixed assets are as follows:

Nature of assets Estimated useful lives
Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Vehicles 8 years

Office Equipment 5 years

Computers - Servers and networks 6 years

Computers - End user devices, such as desktops, laptops, etc. 3 years

Leasehold improvements are amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets or the period of lease whichever is earlier.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying amount of those
components which have been separately recognised as assets is derecognised at the time of replacement
thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property. plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively. if appropriate.

3.16 Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets and are carried
at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any. Intangibles such as software are amortised
over a period of 3 years based on its estimated useful life.

3.17 Impairment of non-financial assets:

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of
cash generating unit which the asset belongs to is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is
reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in
the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously
assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the assets is reflected
at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of the depreciable historical cost.

\,
R
v B et
Ac \',_,(\\
Counts



Indefw ciss Tousing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2021

3.18

3.19

3.20

Provisions and other contingent liabilities:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event. it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation. and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. It the effect of the time value of money is material.
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net present value using an
appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and. where appropriate. the risks specific to the liability.

A present obligation that arises from past events. where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. is disclosed as a
contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising
from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Claims against the
Company. where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote. are not disclosed as
contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition
of income that may never be realised. However. when the realisation of income is virtually certain. then
the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less

Income tax expenses:

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

3.20.1 Current tax:

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit ditfers from
‘profit before tax” as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

3.20.2 Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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3.20.3 Current and Deferred tax for the year:

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss. except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. in which case. the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. In particular.
information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the standalone financial statements
are included are given below:

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Business model assessment:

The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how the financial assets are managed
together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all
relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance
measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the
managers of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised
cost that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether
the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is
part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining
financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a
change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those instruments.

Significant increase in credit risk:

As explained in note 46.1, ECL is measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets,
or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. Ind AS 109 does not define what constitutes a significant increase
in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the Company
takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-looking information.
Refer to note 46.1 for more details.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty:

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future. and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, as described
below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however,
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Fair value of financial instruments:

The Fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques. The Company uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and make
assumptions based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. Judgements and
estimates include considerations of liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk, funding
value adjustments, correlation and volatility.
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4.5

4.6

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method:

The Company 's EIR methodology . as explained in Note 3.1.1. recognises interest income - expense using
a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural
lite of loans given / taken and recognises the eftect of potentially different interest rates at various stages
and other characteristics of the product life cycle including prepayments and penalty interest and charges.

This estimation, by nature requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and lite
cycle of the instrument. as well expected changes India’s base rate and other fee income. expenses that
are integral part of the instrument

Impairment of Financial assets:

The impairment provisions for the financial assets except assets valued at fair value through Profit &
Loss account (FVTPL) are based on assumptions about estimation of the amount and timing of future
cash flows, collateral values, assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. probability of default
(PD) and Loss given default (LGD) rates. The Company uses judgements in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs for impairment calculations based on its past history. existing market conditions
and forward looking estimates at the end of each period. These estimates are driven by number of factors,
change in which can result in different level of allowance.

The Company's expected credit loss (ECL) calculations are output of complex model with number of
underlying assumptions regarding choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies Elements of the
ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

¢  The Company’s internal credit grading model. which assigns PDs to the individual grades based
on ageing.

e  The Company s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and
so allowances for financial assets should be measured on a LTECL basis and the qualitative

assessment.
e The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis.

e Development of ECL models. including the various formulas and the choice of inputs
Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such
as unemployment levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EADs and LGDs.

e  Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to
derive the economic inputs into the ECL models.

It has been the Company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience
and adjust when necessary.

Impairment of Non-Financial assets:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exist, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Where the
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to
its recoverable amount.
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4.8

4.9

4.10

Provisions and contingent liabilities:

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that. by nature. has a heightened element
of litigation risk inherent to its operations. As a result. it is involved in various litigation. arbitration and
regulatory investigations and proceedings in the ordinary course of its business.

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case
and considers such outflows to be probable. the Company records a provision against the case. Where
the probability of outflow is considered to be remote. or probable. but a reliable estimate cannot be made.
a contingent liability is disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses. the Company
takes into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical
evidence from similar incidents. Significant judgement is required to conclude on these estimates.

Provisions for Income Taxes:

Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes including judgment on
whether tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax assessments. A tax assessment can involve
complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended time periods.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectation of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Leases:

Significant judgements are involved in evaluating if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the
requirements of Ind AS 116. The Company also uses significant judgement in assessing the applicable
discount rate which is an equivalent to incremental borrowing rate estimated on best effort basis.

5. Standards issued but not yet effective:

There are no new standard or amendment issued but not effective.
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1Currenes

1

7.A

9

Indian rupees m millions)

Asat
March 31,2021
Cash and cash equivaleats
Cash on hand -
Balance with banks

s at
March 31, 2020

- I CUrTent aecounts 1.972.39 4537
- an fixed deposits with origimal maturity less than three months 7.483.42 408376
4.929.16
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Fixved deposits with ortginal matunits more than 12 months 598.51 6001.21
Fixed deposits with original matunty more than three months and less than 12 months 236.79 139.11
835.30 739.32
Encumbrances on fixed deposits with bank held by the Company
Given as credit enhancements tow ards securitisation assignment 762.40 S566.16
Given as margin against the bank guarantee issued in tavour of BSE Linmuted towards public issuance
of non convertible debentures 25.62 2517
Securities held for trading As at Mareh 31, 2021 Asat March 31, 2020
At fair value through profit and loss account Face value Quantity Amount lFace value Quanuity \mount
Debt Sccurities
0.00% Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 13.07.202]
Bonds 10.00,000 72 90.11 - - -
Total Debt securities (1) 90.11 -
Equity instruments
Indian Railway Finance Corporation Limited 10 17,09.857 39.15 - - -
MTAR Technologies Lid 10 4,595 4.70 - - -
Laxmi Organic Industries Fad 2 105,597 18.43 - - -
Nazara Technologics Ltd 4 2,345 344 - - -
Total equity instruments (B) 65.72
Total (.1-B) 155.83 -
Notes: Please refer note 47.2 Fair Value measurement for valuation methodologies for securities held for trading.
Asat As at

Trade receivables March 31, 2021

Receivables constdered good - non-related party 7741
Receivables considered good - related party - (Refer note 43) 30.70
Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 0.10
108.21
Less : Allowance for expected credit losses (4.19)
104.02
104.02

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Reconciliation of impairment allowance on trade reccivables:

Impairment allowance measured as per simphfied approach

Impairment allowance - Opening Balance (0.26)
Add/ (less). asset originated or acquired (net) (3.93)
Impairment atlowance - Closing Balance (4.19)

Note: For disclosure relating to trade receivable ageing’ provision matrix, refer note 48

<
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March 31, 2020

47.35
1111
0.26

58.72
(0.26)
38.46

38.46
For the year ended

March 31,2020

(0.07)
(0.19)
(0.26)
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(Curreney ¢ Indian rupees m nillions)

10

L.oans (at amortised cost)
A. Term Loans
(1) Housing Loans
(1) Non Housing Loans
Total (A) - Gross
Less: Impairment loss allowance
Total (A) - Net

B. Term Loans

(i) Secured by tangible assets (Refer note 46.1.2)

(1) Unsecured

Total (B) - Gross

Less: Impairment loss allowance
Total (B) - Net

C. Term Loans

C.I Loans in India

(i) Public Sectors

(i1) Others

Total (C.I) - Gross

Less: Impairment loss allowance
Total (C.I) - Net

C.11 Loans outside India
Less: Impairment loss allowance
Total (C.H) - Net

Total: (C I and C 1I)
Notes:

As at
March 31. 2021

Asat
NMarch 31,2020

22.001.66 2641942
14,451.92 17.190.97
36,453.58 13.610.39

(494.99) (409.77)
35,958.59 13.200.62
34,937.09 43.580.99

1,516.49 29.40
36,453.58 43.610.39

(494.99) (409.77)
35,958.59 43.200.62
36,453.58 43.610.39
36,453.58 43.610.39

(494.99) (409.77)
35,958.59 43.200.62
35,958.59 43.200.62

(i) The non-housing loan referred in note 10(A)(1) includes an amount of Rs. 710.08 million (previous year includes Rs. 755.03

million) being mortgage credit insurance premium payable by the obligor on housing loan.

(11) There were no loans given against the collateral of gold jewellery and hence the percentage of such loans to the total outstanding

asset is Nil (previous year Nil).
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10.1. Credit Quality of Assets

Ihe table below shows the eredit quality and the maximum exposure to eredit risk based on year-end stage classification. [he amounts presented are gross of
impairment allowances. Details of the Company's internal grading sy stem are explained in Note 46,1 and policies on ECL allowances are set out in Note 3.6

(a) Gross carrying amount of loan assets allocated to Stage 1. Stage 2 and Stage 3

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31. 2020

Particulars Stage [ Stage 11 Stage 11 Total Stage 1 Stage 1 Stage 111 lotal
Loans (at amortised cost)
Performing
High grade 30,886.26 - - 30,886.26  39.941.18 - - 39.941.18
Standard grade - 4,291.50 - 4.291.50 - 2.908.64 - 2.908.64
Non-performing
Impaired - - 1,275.82 1,275.82 - 760.57 760.57
Total 30,886.26 4,291.50 1,275.82  36,453.58  39.941.18 2.908.64 760.57  43.610.39
(b) Reconciliation of changes in gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL. in relation to loan assets are, as follows:
For the vear ended March 31, 2021 Non-credit impaired Credit impaired s
: s ! T'otal
Stage | Stage 11 Stage 11
Gross Allowance Gross Allowance Gross Allowance Gross Allowance
Particulars carrying for carrying for carrying for carrying for
amount ECL amount ECL amount ECL amount ECL
Opening Balance 39.941.18 56.36 2.908.64 237.64 760.57 110.41 43.610.39 404.40
Transfers:
Transfers to 12 Month FCL 412.66 30.53 (376.24) (26.57) (36.42) (3.90)
(Stage 1)
Transfers to lifetime ECL (Stage 2) (2.965.61) (6.65) 2.975.06 7.70 (9.45) (1.05) # »
Transfers to lifetime ECL- Credit impaired (884.55) (2.05)  (1.236.14) (113.35) 2.120.69 115.40 - E
(Stage 3)
Net remeasurement of ECL arising from - (6.74) - 184.87 - 34.90 - 213.03
transfer of stage
Net new and further lending (repayments) (5.611.41 10.84 21.07 (1031 595 36.80 (5.584.39) 3733
Amounts written oft’ (5.94) (0.0 (0.88) (0.56) (56.15) (33.39) (62.97) (33.96)
Loans sold to assets resconstruction - - - - (1.509.43) (128.75) (1.50943) (128.75)
company*
Closing balance 30,886.33 82.28 4,291.51 279.42 1,275.76 130.36 36.453.60 492.08
For the vear ended March 31, 2020
Opening Balance 51,158.39 117.97 1,820.64 102.30 98291 139.02 5§3,961.94 359.28
Transfers:
Transfers to 12 Month ECL (Stage 1) 239.98 18.36 (225.03) (16.84) (14.95) (1.52) - -
Transfers to lifetime ECL (Stage 2) (1.970.67) (11.43) 1.984.21 12.79 (13.54) (1.36) - -
Transfers to lifetime ECL- Credit (986.57) (6.46) (507.63) (27.78) 1.494.20 34.24 - s
impaired (Stage 3)
Net remeasurement of EC'L arising from (17.62) 140.77 49.64 - 172.79
transfer of stage
Net new and further lending’ (repayments) (8.499.76) (44.40) (162.78) 26.99 (7.43) 7.22 (8.669.97) 110.19)
Amounts written off’ (0.19) (0.06) 0.77) (0.59) (41.80) (39.98) (42.76) (40.63)
Loans sold to assets resconstruction - - - - (1.638.82) (76.85) (1.638.82) (76.85)
company
Closing balance 39,941.18 56.36 2,908.64 237.64 760.57 11041 43,610.39 404.40

*The Company had initiated sale of certain credit impaired financial assets before March 31, 2021 and for which definitive contracts were executed post the
balance sheet date. These financial assets sold after March 31, 2021, amounted to Rs. 430.41 million to asset reconstruction companies trusts (ARC Trust).
As per Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013 significant judgement is involved in classification of
assets which has been accentuated on account of factors caused by COVID 19. Accordingly. on account of subscquent sale to and recovery from ARC Trusts

A

of such credit impaired assets. management has recorded such financial assets as recoverable and not as credit impaired financial assets. EFSL. the holding
ompany has. undertaken substantially all risks and rewards in respect of these financial assets aggregating to Rs. 365.84 million. As at March 31, 2021,

¢ are no impact on the financial statements of the Company other than expected credit loss recorded in the Profit and Loss Statement for the quarter and

\ ye ended March 31, 2021 amounting to Rs. 72.94 million.
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Fdelw ciss THousing Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31,2021 (Continued)

fCurrency

Endian rupees in mulhions )

10.2. Credit Quality of exposure (Loan Commitment)

(a)

(b)

Gross carrying amount of loan commitment allocated to Stage 1. Stage 2 and Stage 3

Particulars
Loans (at amortised cost)
Performing
High grade
Standard grade
Non-performing
Impaired

Total

For the vear ended March 31, 2021

Particulars

As at April 01, 2020

Transfers:

Transfers to 12 Month ECL (Stage 1)
Transfers to lifetime ECL (Stage 2)
Transfers to hfetime ECL- Credit impaired
(Stage 3)

Net remeasurement of ECL arising from
transfer of stage

Net new sanctions and (disbursements)

Closing bhalance

For the vear ended March 31, 2020

As at April 01, 2019

Transfers:
Transfers to 12 Month ECL (Stage 1)
Transfers to lifetime ECL (Stage 2)
Transfers to lifetime ECL- Credit
impaired (Stage 3)

Net remeasurement of ECL arising from

transfer of stage

Net new sanctions and (disbursements)

\s at March 31, 2021

As at March 31,2020

Stage 1 Stage 11 Stage 1 Total Stage | Stage 1l Stage 11 Total
1.257.25 - - 1.257.25 439.61 - - 439.61
- 16,02 10.02 - 42.20 - 42.20
- 13.99 13.99 - - 2.38 2.38
1,257.25 10.02 13.99 1,281.26 439.61 +42.20 2.38 484.19
Reconciliation of changes in gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL in relation to loan commitment are, as follows:
Non-credit impaired Credit impaired Total
Stage | Stage [ Stage 1t ota
Gross Allowance Gross Allowance Gross Allowance Gross Allowance
carrying for carrying for carrying for carrying for
amount ECL amount ECL amount ECL anount ECL
439.61 0.28 42.20 4.90 2.38 0.19 484.20 537
(16.00) (0.09) 16.00 0.09 - - - -
(7.61) (0.02) (6.34) (0.02) 13.94 0.05 - -
841.25 0.80 (41.85) (4.39) (2.34H .16 797.06 (2.43)
1,257.25 0.97 10.01 0.58 13.98 1.40 1,281.26 2.94
1,301.71 1.12 131.05 0.66 84.45 1.87 1,517.21 3.65
1.44 0.12 (1.18) 0.09) (0.26) (0.03) -
(9.33) (0.03) 9.55 0.05 (0.22 (0.02) -
(1.73) - - - 1. . = -
- (0.12) - 0.42 - 0.10 0.40
(852.48) (0.81) (97.22) 3.86 (83.32) (1.73)  (1.033.02) 1.32
439.61 0.28 42.20 4.90 2.38 0.19 484.19 5.37

Closing balance
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Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited

Notes to the tinancial statements for the year ended March 31,2021 (Continued)

(Curreney @ Indian rupees i millions)

12 Other financial assets
(unsceured. considered good)

Sccurity Deposits
Deposits placed with exchange depositories
Advances to others

13 Current tax assets (net)

Advance income taxes

(net of provision for tax Rs.337.65 million. previous year Rs. 200.50 million)

14 Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred tax assets
Loans
Provision for Expected credit loss
Unamortised processing fees - EIR on lending
Property. plant and equipment and intangibles
Difference between book and tax depreciation
Employee benefit obligations
Provision for compensated absences

Disallowances under section 43B of the Income Tax Act. 1961

Unused tax losses
Lease liability
Others

Deferred tax liabilities

Investments and other financial instruments
Unamortised loan origination costs - EIR on lending
Recognition of Interest Strip on assignment deals
Accrued Interest on Stage 3 receivables

Borrowings
Effective interest rate on financial liabilities

Right-of-use Asset (ROU)

Special Reserve u's 36(1) (viii)

Note: For disclosure relating to movement of deferred tax assets’ liabilitics, refer note 36.3
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As at
March 31. 2021

Asat
March 31,2020

205.33 20813
30.00 30.00
681.42 6.79
916.75 244.92
21.86 7.38
21.86 7.38
136.84 100.55
31.98 55.03
11.26 9.46
1.24 0.96
18.25 5.12
30.59 45.96
32.40 0.07
262.56 217.15
25.86 50.23
107.87 83.13
1.87 6.18
13.52 17.36
23.92 39.00
98.70 -
271.74 195.90
(9.18) 21.25
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F-delweiss Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 3. 2021 (Continued)

(Curreney @ Indian rupees i mathons)

17

18

19

Other non-financial assets

Input tax credit (Goods and Services Tax)

Prepaid expenses

Advance to vendors

Advances to employces

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be recenved

Trade Payables

Trade payables to non-related parties
Trade payables to related parties - (Refer note 43)

Notes:

(i) Total outstanding ducs to creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises

(i1) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterpriscs

Debt securitics (In India)
(At amortised cost)

Non-convertible redeemable debentures (Secured)

Privately Placed Non-convertible debentures
Publicly Placed Non-convertible debentures

Note: For disclosure relating to repayment and other terms. refer note 50

As at
March 31,2021

Asat
NMarch 31, 2020

65.99 IN.S3
47.63 9.75
490 288
2.22 2.52
13.59 0.00
134.33 53.68
51.63 56.56
20.65 28.81
72.28 85.37
72.28 85.37
7,258.15 5.422.98
4,418.60 4.668.59
11,676.75 10.091.57




Ldelweiss Housing Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the yvear ended March 31, 2021 (Continued)

(Currency @ Indian rupees in millions)

20

21

22

Borrowings other than debt securities (In India)
(At amortised cost)

Term loans (secured)
- From Banks
- From National Housing Bank

Note: For disclosure relating to repayment and other terms, refer note 49

Bank overdraft (secured)

[Secured by charge on receivables from financing business]

Bank overdraft is in nature of Committed Cash Credit lines repayable on
demand. (Interest rate range, March-21: 8.50% - 10.25%, March-20: 9.23% -
10.50%)

Working capital demand loan (WCDL)

[Secured by charge on receivables from financing business]

WCDL is in nature of short term loan. (Interest rate range, March-21: 8.50% -
10.25%, March-20: 9.25% - 10.50%)

Loan from related parties (Unsecured)
(Repayable on demand, Interest rate payable (@ 11.00% - 12.25%, previous
year 11.00%)

Subordinated liabilities (In India)
(At amortised cost)

Non-convertible subordinated debentures (Unsecured)

Note: For disclosure relating to repayment and other terms, refer note 51
Other financial liabilities

Liability on assigned loans under PCG scheme
Amount payable on assigned loans

Other payables

Book overdraft

Payable to employees

Lease liabilities (Ind AS 116)

£5) "~
: VT
J i
i
o\

87 Ao ¥ e
2 -

As at
March 31,2021

A~ at
\March 31. 2020

18,738.53 24.664.39
2,540.58 2.354.83
21,279.11 27.049.22
149.27 629.69
1,200.00 300.00
- 13.11
22,628.38 27,992.02
508.61 508.61
508.61 508.61
5,266.66 3.554.54
399.26 189.03
0.23 17.39
542.18 -
43.27 5.23
121.54 182.61
6,373.14 3,948.80




Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the tinancial statements for the year ended March 31,2021 (Continued)

(Curreney : Indian rupees in millions)
As at

March 31,2021

23 Current tax liabilities (net)

s at
March 31, 2020

Provision for taxation 16.90 106.03
(net of advance tax Rs. S48.52 million, previous year Rs. 939.00 mitlion)
16.90 106.03
24 Provisions
Provision for employce benefits (Refer note 40)
Gratuity 32.51 20.34
Compensated lcave absences 4,94 3.81
Provision for expenses 0.17 1.19
37.62 25.34
25  Other non-financial liabilities
Revenue received in advance 1.81 3.20
Payable to others 337.66 42.11
Statutory dues payable 20.79 14.47
360.26 59.78




Edebweiss Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Continued)

(Curreney © Indian vupees m millions)
As at March 31, 2021 Asat March 31 2020
26 Equity share capital
Authorised :
TA0.00,000 (Previous yeart TAUHLIN0) equity shates ofF R 10 cach 750,00 T 00
750.00 73,00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up:
6.93.50,000 (Previous year: 6.93.50,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10, fulls paid-up 693.50 693.50
693.50 093.50
fa) Movement in share capital :
As at March 31, 2021 Asat March 31, 2020
No of shares Amount No of shares Amount
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 6,93,50,000 693.50 6.93.30.000 693.50
Shares issued during the year - - - -
Outstandng at the end of the year 6,93.50,000 693.50 6.93.50.000 693.50
(b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares :
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote, In the event of
liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company. afier distribution of all preferential
amounts.
(c) Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiarics
As at March 31, 2021 Asat March 31, 2020
No of shares % No of shares %
Ultimate Holding / Holding company
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited, the holding company 3,83,00,000 55.23% 3.83.00.000 5§5.23%
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited, the ulumate holding company 2,10,50,000 30.35% 2.10,50.000 30.35%
Fellow subsidiaries
Edel Finance Company Limited 1,00,00,000 14.42% 1.00.00.000 14.42%
6,93.50,000 100.00% 6,93.50,000 100.00%
fd) There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts / commitments for the sale of shares/ disinvestment.
As at March 31, 2021 Asat March 31, 2020
27 Other Equity
Securities Premium 4,075.18 4.075.18
Statutory Reserve 547.80 540.34
Debenture Redemption Reserve 341.32 469.25
Deemed capital contribution - Equity 33.46 33.46
Retained Earnings 1,936.62 1.879.01
6,934.38 6.997.24
Note: For movement in Other Equity, refer 'Statement of changes in Equity'
27.1 Nature and purpose of Reserves
(a) Securities Premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. Balance in Securities premium can be utilised only for limited purposes such as
issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
(b) Reserve under section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987
Reserve created under section 29C of National Housing Bank Act, 1987 a sum not less than twenty per cent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the
profit and loss account and before any dividend is declared.
(c) Debenture Redemption Reserve
The Companies Act 2013 requires companies that issue debentures to create a debenture redemption reserve from annual profits until such debentures are
redeemed. Company being NBFC has to maintain Debenture Redemption reserve upto 25% of the value of debentures issued through public issue. The
amounts credited to the debenture redemption reserse may not be utilised except to redeem debentures. On redemption of debentures, the amount may be
transferred from debenture redemption reserve to retained earnings. However, as per the amendment in the Companies Act 2013, debenture redemption
reserve is not required for debentures issued by Non-Banking Finance Companies regulated by Reserve Bank of India for both public as well as privately
placed debentures.
(d) Deemed capital contribution - Equity
This reserve relates to Share options granted to eligible employees of the Company by the parent company under its employee share option plan.
(¢} Retained Earnings

Retained earnings comprises of the Company s undistributed earnings afier taxes
i,

N
N
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For the year ended For the year ended
March 31.2021 March 31,2020
28 Interest Income (at amortised cost)
Interest on Loans 4.451.55 351122
Interest income from investments 38.92 -
Interest on deposits with bank 170.18 3440
Other 1nterest income 21.93 0.95
Income on direct assignment 344.08 87.83
5,026.66 5.654.40
29 Fee and commission income
Fee and commission income 341.46 357.15
341.46 357.15
30 Net gain on fair value changes (Realised)
On trading portfolio
Gain on buy back of debt sccuritics (amortised cost) 61.58 -
Profit on salc of mutual fund units (FVTPL) 22.32 34.79
Profit on sale of equity shares (FVTPL) 9.46 -
Profit on sale of debt instruments (FVTPL) 23.89 4.88
117.25 39.67
3l Other income
Other non operating income 23.37 22.68
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32

33

34

Finance costs (at amortised cost)

Interest on borrowimas

Interest on assignment tability (PCG scheme)
Interest on debt securities

Interest on subordinated liabilities

Other interest expense (including bank charges)
Interest on lease liabilities

Impairment on financial instruments

Loss on sale of loan assets sold to assets reconstruction company
Bad debts and advances written off

Provision for expected credit loss (at amortised cost)

(including on loan commitments)

Employee benefit expenses

Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident and other funds

Gratuity Expense (refer note 40)

Share based payments to employees (Refer note below)
Staft welfare expenses

Note:

For the ycar ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

247541 3.076.59
270.35 71.61
1.054.47 941.25
56.25 56.38
2147 28.74
14.88 18.78
3,892.83 4.193.35
359.27 31747
62.97 42.75
89.16 46.84
511.40 407.06

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31,2020

514.63 626.43
19.77 29.39
6.75 3.94
(0.90) 9.61
17.77 21.34
558.02 690.71

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited ("EFSL™) the ultimate holding Company has granted an Employee stock option plan
(ESOP)/ Stock Appreciation Rights (ESAR) option to acquire equity shares of EFSL that would vest in a graded manner to
Company’s employees. Based on group policy ' arrangement. EFSL has charged the fair value of such stock options rights |
Company has accepted such cross charge and recognised the same under the employee cost.




Edelw eiss Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the yvear ended March 31, 2021 (Continued)

(Currencey @ Indian rupees i millions)

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31,2020

35 Other expenses
Advertisement and business promotion 0.08 5.90
Comnmuission and brokerage 0.23 0.40
Communication 6.10 13.70
Dircctors' sitting fees 0.78 0.80
Legal and professional fees 134.55 80.78
Printing and stationery 4.40 5.79
Loan origination costs amortised 125.22 190.70
Rent. rates and taxes 63.30 69.09
Repairs and maintenance 4.67 6.95
Electricity charges 6.15 9.32
Computer expenscs 20.84 19.21
Corporate social responsibility (refer note 35.2) 15.79 21.94
Rating support fecs 8.81 7.13
Oftfice expenses 79.02 133.03
Postage and courier 1.94 3.03
Goods and Service tax expenses 60.92 88.39
Stamp duty 14.15 0.32
Auditors' remuneration (refer note 35.1) 6.98 5.63
Travelling and conveyance 6.87 27.26
Miscellaneous expenses 11.81 20.90
Donation - 10.00
572.61 720.27
35.1 Auditors' remuncration:
As an Auditor
Statutory Audit 2.50 2.95
Limited Review 1.50 1.05
Certification 2.88 1.52
Towards reimbursement of expenses 0.10 0.11
6.98 5.63
35.2 Details of CSR Expenditure:
As per the provisions of Section 135 of Companics Act 2013,
Gross Amount required to be spent by the Company 15.79 21.94
Amount Spent (paid in cash)
(i) Construction/ Acquisition of any assets - -
(i1) on purpose other than (i) above 15.79 21.94
Amount Spent (vet to be paid in cash)
Construction/ Acquisition of any assets - -
on purpose other than (i) above - -
15.79 21.94

T
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36

36.1

36.2

NG,
X ‘7/'19 e Yy

Income tax

The components of income tax expense:

Current tax

Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years

Deferred tax relating to origination and reversal of temporary ditferences
MAT credit entitlement

Total tax charge

Current tax
Deferred tax

Reconciliation of total tax charge

Accounting profit before tax as per financial statements

Tax rate (in percentage)
Income tax expense calculated based on this tax rate
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years
Effect of income not subject to tax:
Tax break of deduction u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income tax Act. 1961
Income on closure of leases
Adjustment on account of Valuation of Securities (ICDS)
Deduction u's 35D of Income tax Act, 1961
Effect of non—deductible expenses:

Penalties

Others
Impact of tax rate changes (between two accounting periods)
Tax charge for the year recorded in P&L

Effective tax rate

For the period ended
March 31. 2021

For the vear ended
March 31. 2020

39.21 99.23
(90.46) (10.57)
(66.76) (140.40)

- 19.82
(118.01) (31.92)
(51.25) 88.66
(66.76) (120.58)

For the period ended
March 31, 2021

For the ycar ended
March 31. 2020

(80.72) (16.37)
25.17% 25.17%
(20.32) (4.12)
(90.46) (14.89)
(0.76) (0.79)
(3.43) .
(0.79) .
(0.08) (0.18)
(2.18) 15.89
- (27.83)
(118.01) (31.92)
146.20% 194.99%,
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36 Incomc tax
36.3 Movement of Deferred Tan assets / (liabilities)

For the Year Ended March 31, 2021

Deferred tax Deferred tax
asset / In profit or . Directly in Total asset /
. In OCl . s
(liability) loss equity movement (liability)
(Opening) (Closing)
Deferred taxes in relation to:
Deferred Tax Assets
Provision for expected credit loss 100.55 36.29 - - 36.29 136.84
Effcctive interest rate on tinancial assets 4.80 1.32 - - 1.32 6.12
Retirement Benefits 6.08 12.67 0.74 - 13.41 19.49
Difterence between book and tax WDV (including 9.46 1.80 - - 1.80 11.26
intangiblcs)
Leasc liability 45.96 (15.37) - - (15.37) 30.59
Others 0.07 3233 - - 3233 32.40
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Stage 3 Income recognition 6.18) 431 - - 4.31 (1.87)
Interest spread on assignment transactions (83.13) 24.7H - - (24.74) (107.87)
Effective interest rate on financial Liabilities (17.36) 3.84 - - 3.84 (13.52)
Special Reserve u's 36(1) (viii) - (0.76) - (97.94) (98.70) (98.700
Right-of-use Asset (ROU) (39.00) 15.07 - - 15.07 (23.92)
21.25 66.76 0.74 (97.94) (30.44) (9.18)
For the Ycar Ended March 31. 2020
Deferred taxes in relation to:
Deferred Tax Asscts
Provision for expected credit loss 116.30 (t5.81) - - (15.81) 100.55
Effective interest rate on financial assets (3.55) 8.35 - - 8.35 4.80
Retirement Benefits 6.47 (0.75) 0.36 (0.39) 6.08
Difference between book and tax WDV (including 8.83 0.63 - - 0.63 9.46
intangibles)
Lease liability . (23.42) - 69.38 45.96 45.96
Others - 0.07 - - 0.07 0.07
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Stage 3 Income recognition (2591 19.73 - - 19.73 (6.18)
Interest spread on assignment transactions (193.21) 110.08 - - 110.08 (83.13)
Effective interest rate on financial Liabilities (35.32) 17.96 - - 17.96 (17.36)
MAT Credit Entitlement 19.82 (19.82) - - (19.82) -
Right-of-use Asset (ROU) - 23.56 - (62.56) (39.00) (39.00)
Total (106.51) 120.58 0.36 6.82 127.76 21.25
Note:

The Government of India. on September 20, 2019, vide the Faxation Laws (Amendment) Ordmnance 2019 (the Ordinance). inserted a new Section 113BAA in the Income
tax Act, 1961, which provides an option to the Company for paying Income tax at reduced rates. Accordingly. the Company has recognised provision for income tax for
the year ended March 31, 2020. The Company has also re-measured its deferred tax asscts | habilities (net) for the year ended March 31, 2020 on the basis of the rate
prescribed in the aforesaid section resulting in tax charge reduction by Rs. 27.83 million.
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Cash Flow Disclosure

Change in Liabilities arising from financing acitivies

As at March 31,

Changes in

As at March 31,

Particulars 2020 Cash Flows Fair value Others* 2021
Debt Sccurities 10.091.57 1.793.02 - (207.84) 11.676.75
Borrowings other than Debt Sccuritics 27.992.02 (5.360.01) - (3.63) 22.628.38
Subordinated Liabilities 508.61 - - - 508.61
38,592.20 (3,566.99) - (211.47) 34,813.74

As at March 31, ) . Changes in - As at March 31,

2019 Cash Flows Fair valuc Others 2020
Debt Sccuritics 12.582.50 (2.568.80) - 77.93 10,091.57
Borrowings other than Debt Securities 31.634.95 (3.573.68) - (69.25) 27.992.02
Subordinated Liabilities 508.48 - - 0.13 508.61
44,725.93 (6,142.54) - 8.81 38,592.20

*Other column includes the effect of accrued but not paid interest on borrowing. amortisation of processing fees ete.




Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2021 (Continued)

(Currency @ Indian rupees in mithons)

38.

(b)

Earnings per Share

Basic carnings per share is caleulated by dividing the profit atnbutable to equity sharcholders ot the Company by the weighted

average number of equity shares outstanding during the year,

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Net Profit attributable to Equity holders of the Company - A 37.29 15.53
Weighted average Number of Shares
- Number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 69.35 69.35
- Number of equity shares issued during the year - -
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 69.35 69.35
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (based
on the date of issue of shares) - B 69.35 69.35
Nominal value of euity shares 10.00 ) 10.00
Basic and diluted earnings per share (in rupees) (A B) 0.54 0.22

The basic and diluted earnings per share are the same as there are no dilutive’ potential equity shares issued or outstanding as at the

year end.
Contingent Liability and Commitment:

Contingent Liability

Taxation matters

Litigation pending against the company

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Nil Nil
Nil Nil

The Company s pending litigations mainly comprise of claims against the Company pertaining to proceedings pending with Income
Tax and other authorities. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for
where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable. in the financial statements. The Company
believes that the outcome of these proceedings will not have a materially adverse effect on the Company s financial position and

results of operations.

Commitment:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be

of advances)

Loan sanctioned pending disbursements

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

executed on capital account (net 8.05 7.63

1,281.26 484.19
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(1)

(b)

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

ov o Indian rupees in milhons)

Retirement and other employ ce benefits

Detined contribution plan - Provident funds

In accordance with Employees' Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act. 19320 employees of the Company are entitled to recenve benefits under the provident fund. a
defined contribution plan. in which. both the emplosee and the Company contribute monthly at & determined rate. These contributions are made 1o a recognized provident
fund administered by Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. The emplosees contnibute 12% of therr basic salary and the Company contributes an egual amount

e Company recognised Rs. 25.04 millions (March 21, 2020 R< 32.76 Millions) for provident fund in the Statement of profit and loss.

Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act. 1972, the Campany provides for gratuity. a defined benefit plan covering all emplosees. The plan provides a lump sum
payment to vested employees at retirement or termination of employment in accordance with the rules laid down in the Pasment of Gratuity Act. 1972, The gratnty benefit is
partially provided through funded plan and annual expense is charged to the statement of profit and loss on the basis of actuarial valvation

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the detined benefit oblization (DBO) for gratuity are carried out as at March 1. 2021, The present
value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current serviee cost and past senvice cost. are measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect. the following table sets out the status of the gratmty plan and the amounts recognised i the Company's financial

statements as at balance sheet date:

Present value of defined benefit obligations (A)
Fair Value of plan assets (B)

Present value of defined benefit obligations (A-B)

Net deficit (assets) are analysed as:
Liabilities
Assets

Movement in net defined benefit (asset) liability:

As at Asat

March 31. 2021 March 31. 2020
3251 20.34

32.51 20.34

3251 20.34

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net detined benefit (asset) hability

Present value of defined benefit obligations (opening)
Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest cost

Other comprehensive Income

Remeasurement Actuarial loss (gain) arising from :
Experience

Financial and demographic assumptions

Expected return from plan assets

Others

Transfer In (Out)
Contributions by Employer
Benefits paid

Closing Balance (i) + (ii) + (iii)
Represented by:

Net defined benefit asset

Net defined benefit liability

Defined benefit obligation

Fair value of plan assets

and its components:

Net defined benefit (asset) liability

March 31. 2021  March 21. 2020  March 31. 2021 March 31. 2020  March 31. 2021  March 31. 2020
20.34 1497 - 20.34 14.97
5.24 4.22 - - 5.24 422
1.50 1.09 - - 1.50 1.09
27.08 20.28 - - 27.08 20.28
0.36 (0.36) - 0.36 (0.26)
2.59 1.80 - 2.59 1.80
2.95 1.44 2.95 1.44
6.99 1.19 6.99 1.19
(4.51) (2.57) 4.5 (2.57)
2.48 (1.28) - - 2.48 (1.38)
32.51 20.34 - - 32.51 20.34
32.51 20.34
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40 Retirement and other emplos ee benefits

Components of defined benefit plan cost:

Far the year ended For the sear ended
March 31,2021 March 31,2020
{il  Recognised in Statement of profit or loss
Current sernvice cost 324 422
[nterest cost 1.50 1.09
Expected retum on plan assets - -
Past service cost -
6.74 531
(ii)  Recognised in other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of net detined benefit hability (asset) 295 144
Return on plan assets excluding net interest - -
.95 144
Total (i) + (ii) 9.69 0.75
Actuarial assumptions:
The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reparting date
As at As at
March 31. 2021 March 31, 2020
Discount Rate S.00% 5.50%
Salary Growth Rate 7.00% T.00%
Withdrawal Attition Rate (based on categories) 25.00% 13% 10 30%
Expected return on plan Assets (p.a) 5.50% 6.70%
Mortality Rate 1AL M 2012- IALM 2012-
14(Lltimate) H4(Ultimate)
Expected weighted average remainin working hves of employees 3 Years 3 Years
Sensitivity analysis:
As at March 31,2021 _AsatMarch 31. 2020
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Salary Growth Rate (-« - 1%) 1.31 (1.23) 0.78 (0.74)
Discount Rate (= - 1%) (1.24) 1.34 (0.74) 0.80
Withdraw] Rate (- - 1%) 0.10) 0.11 (0.03) 0.03
Mortality (increase in expected litetime by 1 year) 2 1
Mortality (increase in expected hfetime by 3 year) s 2

The sensitivity is pertormed on the DBO at the respective valuation date by modifving one parameter whilst retainmg other parameters constant. There are no changes from
the previous pertod to the methads and assumptions underlying the sensitivity analysis

Asset liability comparisons: As at Asat
March 31. 2021 March 1. 2020
Present value o DBO 3251 20.34
Fair Value of Plan assets -
Net (Assets) Liabilitiy 32.51 20.34

(c¢) Compensated absences :
The Company provides for accumulated compensated absences as at the balance sheet date using projected unit credit method based on actuarial valuation. The leave

encashment on separation is paid on basic salary.
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41, Maturity Analysis of assets and liabilities

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars Within 12 After 12 Total Vithin 12 After 12 Total
nonths months months months
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 9.455.81 - 9.455.81 4.929.16 - 4.929.16
Bank balances other than cash and cash 817.99 {731 835.30 701.49 37.83 739.32
equivalents
Securities held for trading 155.83 - 155.83 - -
Trade receivables 104.02 - 104.02 58.46 - 58.46
Loans 7.963.09 27.995.50  35.958.39 8.521.10 34.679.52 43.200.62
Investments . 1.600.86 1.600.86 - 1.044.73 1.044.73
Other financial asscts 520.91 395.84 916.75 - 24492 244.92
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (nct) = 21.86 21.86 - 7.38 7.38
Deferred tax assets (net) - - - - 21.25 21.25
Property. plant and equipment - 118.28 118.28 - 203.83 203.83
Intangible assets under development - 7.10 7.10 - 1.435 1.45
Other intangible assets - 2.27 2.27 - 346 3.46
Other non- financial assets 134.33 - 134.33 53.68 - 53.68
Total Assets 19,151.98 30,159.02  49,311.00 14.263.89 36.244.37  50.508.26
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables 72.28 - 72.28 85.37 - 85.37
Debt securities 4,217.33 745942  11.676.75 1.250.11 8.841.46 10.091.57
Borrowings (other than debt sccurities) 9.088.06 13.540.32  22.628.38 8.699.66 19.292.36  27.992.02
Subordinated liabilitics 8.61 500.00 508.61 8.61 500.00 508.61
Other financial liabilities 2.160.97 4.212.17 6.373.14 1.058.77 2.890.03 3.948.80
Non-financial liabilities -
Current tax liabilities (net) 16.90 - 16.90 106.03 - 106.03
Provisions 37.62 - 37.62 25.34 - 25.34
Deferred tax liabilities (net) - 9.18 9.18 - 5 .
Other non-financial liabilities 360.26 - 360.26 59.78 - 59.78
Total Liabilities 15,962.02 25,721.10  41,683.12 11.293.67 31.523.85 42817.52
Net 3,189.96 4,437.92 7,627.88 2,970.22 4.720.52 7.690.74
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Segment Information

Lhe Company is operating under single business

segitient i.¢. 1o provide loans for purcliase or construction of residential houses, Toan aganst properties and foans (o

real estate developers. Accordingly. there is ne separate reportable segment and hence ne- disclesure is made under Ind AS 10X - "Operating Segment Reporting

Further, segmentation based on geography has not been presented as the Company eperates only an india

Related Party Disclosuress

i.  List of related parties and relationship:

Name of related parties by whom control is exercised :

Holding Company
Cliimate Holding Company

Fellow Subsidiaries
(with whom transactions have taken place)

Fellow Associates (From March 26. 2021)

[ndependent Director

Key Management Personnel (with whom

transactions have taken place)

Transactions with related parties :

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Senvices Limited
Edebweiss Financial Services Limited

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company | imited

Edelweiss Tokio Lite Insurance Company Lumited

Edelweiss Gallagher Insurance Brokers Limited

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited

Edelweiss General Insurance Company Linited

Edelweiss msurance Brokers Limited

Edelweiss Asset Management Limited

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Edel Finance Company Limited

Edelweiss Comtrade Limited

Edelcap Secunties Limited

Ecap Equities Lunited

ECL Finance Limited

EdelGive Foundation

Edel Land Limited

Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited (L p to March 26. 2021)
Edelweiss [nvestment Advisors Limited (Up to March 26. 2021)
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited (L p to March 26. 2021)
Edelweiss Securities Limited (Lp to March 26. 2021}
Edelweiss Broking Lumited (Up to March 26. 2021)

Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Edelweiss Investment Advisors Limited
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited
Edelweiss Securities Limited

Edelweiss Broking Limited

\ir. P N. Venkatachalam

Mr. Vaidyanathan P (upto Feb 3. 2020)

Mrs. Vijayalakshmi Rajaram Iver (upto Feb 11, 2019]
Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar (From April 13. 2020)

Mr. Biswamohan Mahapatra (From October 29. 2020)

Mr. Rajat Avasthi (Managing Director & CEO) (From September 3. 2020)

Mr. Krishnaswamy Siddharth {Executive Director & CRO effective October |, 2019)
Mr. Manish Dhanuka (Chief Financial Officer) (From July 3. 2020)

Mr. Manjeet Bijlani (Chief Financial Officer upto April 14. 2020)

\Mr. Sagar Tawre {Company Secretary upto Jul 12.2019)

Ms. Riddhi Parekh (Company Secretary )

Nature of Transaction

For the year ended

Related Party Name March 31. 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

Capital Account Transactions:
Short tenn loans taken from

Short term loans repaid to

Maximum transaction durimg the vear

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited -
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited -
ECL Finance Limited 250.00

Volunie of ransactions during the vear

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited -
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited -
ECL Finance Limited 250.00

Maximum transaciion during the vear

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited -
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 13.00
ECL Finance Limited 250.00

Volume of transactions during the vea

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited -
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 13.00
ECL Finance Limited 250.00

1.806.24
2.000.00

15.496.72
5.748.00

1.550.00
1.190.00

15.497.26
5.735.00
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43 Related Party Disclosuress

Nature of Lransaction

Related Party Name

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

Short term loans given to

LY

Maximwen iraisacaon during the vear

ECL Finance Limited 1.500.00 2.300.00
I-delweiss Rural & Corporate Senvices Dimited 800.00
Edelweiss Retail Fmance Limited 4.000.00
Volume of tansaciions duving the v
ECL Finance Limited 6.010.00 759000
Ldelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limted 800.00 =
Edelweiss Retait Finance Linnted 20.830.00
Short tenm leans repaid by Maximum nransacron dining the year
ECL Finance Limited 2.000.00 2.000.00
Edelweiss Retail Finance [imited 4.000.00 -
Edelweiss Rural & Comporate Services Lanited 800.00 -
Volume of transactions during the vem
ECL Finance Eiited 5.020.00 T.880.00
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 20.820.00
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 800.00
Loan porfolio purchase under direct assignment ECL Finance Limited 1.937.86 -
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 1.769.67 -
Security deposit placed with ECap Equities Limited - 80.00
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Senvices Limited - 100.00
Loan sold to ARC trust Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Linited 26.80 1.325.00
[mvestment n Secunity Receipt issued by Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
EARC Trust SC 378 22.78 -
EARC Trust SC 401 - 981.75
EARC Trust SC 374 62.98
Purchase of bonds from ECL Finance Limited 83.64 =
Sale of bonds to ECI. Finance Limited 2.144.87
Redemption of bonds held in Edelweiss Retatt Finance Linnted 250,00 -
Current Account Fransactions:
Interest Expenses on loan from Edehweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 5382
Edelweiss Retait Finance Linnted 0.28 112.07
ECL Finance Limited 0.50 -
Interest Income on loan to ECL Finance Limited 8.39 14.25
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 3291 &
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 17.21 -
Interest Income on security deposit to ECap Equities Limited 9.68 0.32
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 12.10 040
Interest Expenses on Non convertible Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Linited - 0.08
Debentures Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited 0.02 0.02
ECL Finance Limited 3.66 0.21
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 0.24 -
Interest Income on non convertible debentures ECL Finance Limited 18.50 -
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 9.56
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 10.85 =
Cost reimbursement paid to Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 9.12 2116
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 10.00 1334
Ecap Equities Limited 0.44 0.1]
Edelweiss Secunities Limited 0.66 1.00
Edel Land Limited 3.03
ECL Finance Limited 0.09 -
Edelweiss Investiment Advisors Limited - 0.94
ESOP cost reimbursenent Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 1.84 14.59
Cost reimbursement received from ECL Finance Limited - 448
Edelweiss Broking Limited 0.17 0.03
Service fee received from Edelweiss Retail Tinance Limited 0.02 0.03
T ECL Finance Limited 0.11 0.16
1070
érjee. Q\'nrges paid Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 0.66 -
N eV ECL Finance Limited 0.95 -
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Notes 1o the financial statements for the year ended March 312021000 entinued)

Curieny - Indtan vapees momallions

43 Related Party Disclosuress

Nature of ransaction

Related Party Name

For the year ended
March 31,2021

Ferthe yvear ended
March 31, 2020

Shared premises cost paid to

Shared premises cost recened from

Corporate Guarantee support fee paid to

Rating support fees paid to

Risk and reward sharing fee expense

ARC Management Fee received from

Professional fees paid to

Management Fees paid to
Management Fees received from
Comuussion and brokerage paid to

Enterpnise service charge paid to

Corporate Cost

Director Sitting fees

Remuneration to

Sale of Propenty. plant and equipment

ECE Finance [ mited
Ldelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Ecap Equuties Limited

Edehweiss Broking Limited
Edelweiss Sceurities Limited

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited
Edelweiss Comtrade Limited

Edelweiss Insurance Brokers Linnted
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited
Edelweiss Broking Limited

Edelweiss General Insurance Company Linited

Edel Land Limned

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Senvices Linnted
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

Edelweiss Financial Services Linited

Edelweiss Rural & Corpurate Services Lonited
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

Edclweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Edeiweiss Financial Services Limited
Edelweiss Investment Advisors Limited

Edelweiss Rwal & Corporate Services [imited
Edelweiss Financiat Services Limited

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Lumited
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

Mr. PN Venkatachalam
Mr. Vaidyanathan P
Sunil Phatarphekar
Biswamohan Mahapatra

Nr. Rajat Avasthi

Mr. Krishnaswany Siddharth
\ir, Manjeet Bijlani

Mr. Sagar Tawre

Ms. Riddhi Parekh

\r. Manish Dhanuka

ECL Finance Limited

Edelweiss Finance & [nvestmems Limited
Edelweiss Alteative \sset Advisors Limited
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company 1 imited
Edehweiss Broking Limited

Edel Land Limited

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited
Edelweiss Insurance Brokers Limited
Edelweiss Investment Advisors Limited
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Edelweiss Securitics Limited

742
23.97
17.14

0.01
|ENE

0.00

0.03
0.18
0.05
1.26

4442
i5.01

040

0.28
0.10

9.93
2.34
0.73

2,05
449

0.01

0.07
0.03

11.20
2001
17.55
1.23
0.07
11.76
0.02
0.10

0.14

0.08

io2

14.40
17.78

048
032

20.94
3.79
7.22

0.31
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43 Related Party Disclosuress

. \sat sl
Nature of Transaction Related Party Name March 31,2021 \urch 31,2020
Purchase of Properts. plant and equipment Edetwerss Securites L umied 0.00 003
ECT Pinanee Finited 0.01 023
Edelweiss Gallagher Insurance Brokers Fined 0.02 -
Edelw Alternative Asset Advisors Limited - 0.0}
Edelw Broking Limited 0.07 0.28
Edelw Financial Services | imited - 0.02
Edelweiss [nvestment Advisors Limited - 0.02
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 0.01 0.05
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services |imited 0.03 0.07
Advisory fees carned from ECL Finance Limited 3393 74.53
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 9.00 -
CSR expenses paid to EdelGive Foundation 1579 21.94
Amount paid to broker for Cash segment Edelweiss Securittes [imited 193.15
Amount received from broker for Cash segment  Edelweiss Sceurities Limited 24941
Balances with related party
Non convertible debentures held by (Face value)  ECL Fimance Limited 158.38 24.57
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Linted 0.16 0.16
Edelweiss Retail Finance Linted 7.60 -
Non convertible debentures held v (Face vatue)  Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 72.00
Short term borrowings from Edelweiss Retail Fiance Limited - 13.00
Interest Payable on Short term borrowings to Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited - 0.11
Short term loan given to ECL Finance Limited 1.000.00 10.00
Interest Receivable on Short temn borrowings ECL Finance Limited 1.57 11.90
from Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 8.14 -
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Senvices Limited 343 -
Secunty deposit given including accrued interest  ECap Equities Limited 80.91 80.32
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 10114 100.40
Interest accrued but not due on Nonconvertible  Edelweiss Finance & Investments Linited 0.01 0.01
debentures held by Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 0.52 kS
ECL Finance Limited 11.29 172
Trade Payables to Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 1.48 8.61
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited - 0.28
ECL Finance Limited 4.60 435
Ecap Equities Limited 1.62 1.46
Edelweiss Securities Limited 0.01 0.06
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 1.87 215
Edelweiss Altemative Asset Advisors Lunited 0.90 -
Edelweiss Broking Limited - 0.01
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Senvices Limited 8.44 11.89
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited 0.00 0.00
Edel Land Limited 0.0t -
Other Payable to Edelweiss Financial Services Limited . 14.59
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Senvices Limited - 0.04

Margin receivable from Edelweiss Securities Limited 6.00
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43 Related Party Disclosuress

Nature of Iransaction Related Party Name \h“ﬂ\‘z;:f 01 \I.n\'h\:\ ;|.l2l)ZU

Frade Recewables from ECL Finance Lunmted 13.56 9.74
Edelwerss Financial Services Lited 13.33 0.01
Fdelweiss Retail Finance Limited 0.61 0.16
Edelweiss Broking Limited 0.02 -
Edebweiss Securities Limited - 0.03
Edelweiss Custodial Senvices Limited 0.02 0.01
Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited 0.15 0.08
Edelweiss Comtrade Limited 0.02 0.02
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Senvices Linited 2.09 0.10
Edelcap Securities Limited - 0.00
Edebweiss Finance & [nvestments Lionited 0.02 0.89
Edel Finance Company Limited - 0.01
Edelweiss Tokio Lite Insurance Company Limited 0.00 0.04

Other Receivable from Edelweiss Finance & Investments Lunited - 045
ECL Finance Limited - 4.57
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 0.90 -

lavestment in Security Receipts issued by Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
EARC Trust SC 401 931.62 981.75
EARC Trust SC 374 57.84 62.98
EARC Trust SC 378 20.66 -

Non-fund Based

Corporate Guarantee taken from Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 1.890.58 2.38483
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 1.890.58 238482
Fdel Land Limited 300.82 =

Risk and Rewards Guarantee taken from Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Linted - 924.59
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 1.446.13

Notes:

1 As pant of fund based activities. intergroup company loans and advances activities undentaken are generally in the nature of revolving demand loans. Such loans
and advances. voluminous in nature, are carried on at arm’s length and in the ordinary course of business. Pursuant to Ind AS 24 — Related Party Disclosures.
maximum amount of loans given and repaid alongwith the transaction volume are disclosed above. Interest income and expenses on such loans and advances are
disclosed on the basis of full amounts of such loans and advances given and repaid.

[nformation relating to remuneration paid to key managerial person mentioned above excludes provision made for gratuity. leave encashment. bonus and deferred
bonus which are provided for group of employees on an overall basis. These are included on cash basis. The variable compensation included herein is on cash
basis.

(™)

3 The above list contain name of only those related parties with whom the Company has undertaken transactions for the year ended March 312021 and March 31,
2020.
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44 l.eases

44.1.  Transition to Ind AS 116 on l.case

44.1.  Sct out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-usc assets recognised and the moyvements

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

Balance as at April 1 154.96 179.04
Addition 19.56 17.41
Lease pre-closure (+43.30) -
Aniortisation for the vear (35.93) (41.49)
Balance as at March 31 95.09 154.96
44.2.  Sct out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements
Balance as at April |1 182.61 198.53
Additions’ reversal (net) 19.56 17.41
Interest on lease liabilities 14.88 18.78
Lease pre-closure (57.13) -
Repayment of lease obligation (38.38) (52.11)
Balance as at March 31 121.54 182.61
44.3. Amounts recognised in profit or loss:
Amortization of right-of-use assets 35.93 41.49
Interest expense on lease liabilities 14.88 18.78
Reversal of lease pre-closure (13.63) -
Total 37.18 60.27
44.4. Total Cash outflow for leases:
Cash outflow of long term leases 38.38 52,1
Cash outflow of short term leases 0.33 1.30
Total 38.71 5341

44.5. Details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities, on an undiscounted basis:

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

Less than 1 year 36.30 50.70
1-3 years 50.05 79.47
3-5 years 40.92 40.23
More than § years 22.83 29.49
Total 150.10 199.89

45 Cost sharing

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited, being the ultimate holding Company along with fellow subsidiaries incurs expenditure like. Group mediclaim,
insurance, rent, electricity charges etc. which is for the common benefit of itself and its certain subsidiaries. fellow subsidiaries including the Company,
This cost so expended is reimbursed by the Company on the basis of number of employees. time spent by employees of other Companies. actual
identifications etc. On the same lines. employees™ costs expended (if any) by the Company for the benefit of fellow subsidiaries is recovered by the

Company. Accordingly, and as identified by the management. the expenditure heads in note 34 and 35 include reimbursements paid and are net of
reimbursements received based on the management’s best estimates are Rs. 8435 million (previous vear Rs. 93.86 million)
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46.

(a)

(b)

Risk Management

Introduction and risk profile

Risk is an inherent part of Company's business activities. When the Company extends a corporate or retail loan. buy or sell securities
market. or offers other products or services. the Company takes on some degree of risk. The Company's overall objective is 1o manage its
businesses. and the associated risks. in a manner that balances serving the interests of its customers and investors and protects the safety
and soundness of the Company.

The Company believes that effective risk management requires:
1) Acceptance of responsibility. including identification and escalation of risk issues. by all individuals within the Company:
2) Ownership of risk identification. assessment. data and management within each of the lines of business and Corporate: and
3) Firmwide structures for risk governance
The Company strives for continual improvement through efforts to enhance controls. ongoing employee training and development and
other measures.

Risk Management Structure

The Company have a well-defined risk management pohcy framework for risk identification, assessment and control to effectively
manage risks associated with the various business activities. The risk function is monitored primarily by the business risk group. The
Company has also established a Risk Committee that is responsible for managing the risk arising out of various business activities.

Company's risk management policy ensures that the margin requirements are conservative to be able to withstand market volatility and
scenarios of sharply declining prices. As a result. Company follows conservative lending norms. The Company centralises the risk
monitoring systems to monitor it's client's credit exposure which is in addition to the monitoring undertaken by the respective businesses.

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management
framework. The board has established the Risk Management Committee. which is responsible for developing and monitoring the
Company’s risk management policies. The Committee holds regular meetings and report to board on its activitics.

The audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company 's risk management policies and procedures. and
reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is assisted
in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and
procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

Risk mitigation and risk culture

The Company's business processes ensure complete independence of functions and a segregation of responsibilities. Credit appraisal &
credit control processes, centralised operations unit. independent audit unit for checking compliance with the prescribed policies and
approving loans at transaction level as well as our risk management processes and policies allow layers of multiple checks and
verifications. Company's key business processes are regularly monitored by the business and/or operation heads. Company's loan
approval and administration procedures, collection and enforcement procedures are designed to minimise delinquencies and maximise
recoveries.

At all tevels of operations, specifically tailored risk reports are prepared and distributed in order to ensure that all business divisions have
access 1o extensive. necessary and up—to—date information.

It is the Company s policy that a monthly briefing is given to the Board of Directors and all other relevant stakeholder on the utilisation
of market limits, proprietary investments and liquidity. plus any other risk developments.

It is the Company s policy to ensure that a robust risk awareness is embedded in its organisational risk culture. Employees are expected
to take ownership and be accountable for the risks the Company is exposed to, that they decide to take on. The Company 's continuous
training and development emphasises that employees are made aware of the Company s risk appetite and they are supported in their roles
and responsibilities to monitor and keep their exposure to risk within it's risk appetite limits. Compliance breaches and internal audit
findings are important elements of employees” annual ratings and remuneration reviews.

) 2,
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46. Risk Management

(d) Types of Risks

The Company's risks are generally categorized in the following risk types:

Risk

Exposure Arising from

Measurement

Management of risk

Credit Risk

Cash equivalents. trade receivables.
financial assets measured at amortised
cost.

Aging Analysis. Credit Ratings

Credit limits and regular
monitoring.

Liquidity Risk

Borrowings and other liabilities

Rolling cash flow
forecasts

Availability of surplus cash.
committed credit lines and
borrowing facilities

Market Risk

Investments in Governent Securiteis,
Treasury Bills, Equity Shares. Futures
& Options

Cash flow forecasting
Sensitivity analysis

Regular monitoring to keep the
exposure at an acceptable level.
with option of taking Interest
Rate Swaps/Futures if deemed
necessary.
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46.1.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial Toss to the Company i a customer or counterparty o a financial instrument fails v meet it contractual
obligations. and arises principally from the Company's loans and wrade receivables. Fhe Company has @ policy of dealing with creditworthy
counterpartics and obtains sufficient collateral. where appropriate. as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. In case the loans

are o be restructured. similar credit assessment process is followed by the Company.

[he Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mamly by the mdwidual characteristics of cach customer However. management also
considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base. including the default risk of the industry and country in which

customers operate.

I'he Company manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for individual counterpartics Groups
(Single Borrowing Limit Group Borrowing Limit) and for industry concentrations. and by monitoring exposures in relation to such linits.

Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on its credit worthiness and historical dealings with the Company and market intelligence.
Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The credit quality review process aims to allow the Company to assess the potential loss

as a result of the risks to which it is exposed and take corrective actions.

Impairment Assessment:

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss. The expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a
Y g 1my
provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted tor forward-looking information.

The expected credit loss is a product of exposure at default. probability of default and loss given default. The Company has devised an internal
model to evaluate the probability of default and loss given default based on the parameters set out in Ind AS. Accordingly. the loans are classified

into various stages as follows:

Internal rating grade Internal grading description Stages
Performing

High grade 0 dpd and | to 30 dpd Stage |
Standard grade 311090 dpd Stage [1
Non-performing

Individually impaired 90+ dpd Stage 1

Expected Credit Loss

Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the entity expects to receive (i.e.. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. Expected Credit Loss (ECL) computation is not driven by any
single methodology. however methodology and approach used must retlect the following:

- An unbiased and probability weighted amount that evaluates a range of possible outcomes

- Reasonable and supportable information that is avaifable without undue cost and effort at the reporting date about past events. current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions:

- Time value of money

While the time value of money element is currently being factored into ECL measurement while discounting cash flows by the Effective Interest
Rate (EIR), the objective of developing a macrocconomic model using exogenous macroeconomic variables (MEVs) is to address the first two
requirements. This has been achieved by using the model output to adjust the PD risk component in order to make it forward looking and
probability-weighted.

Significant increase in credit risk (SICR)

Company considers a financial instrument defaulted. classified as Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL calculations. in all cases when the borrower
becomes 90 days past due. Classification of assets form stage | to stage 2 has been carried out based on SICR criterion. Accounts which are more
than 30 days past due have been identified as accounts where significant increase in credit risk has been observed. These accounts have been
classified as Stage 2 assets. When such events occur, the Company carefully considers whether the event should result in treating the customer as
defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL calculations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate.




Edciweiss Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Continued)

(Currency @ Indian rupees i millions)

46.1. Credit Risk

(d)

(c)

4

@

Probability of Default

Probability of default (PD) is an estimate of the likehihood of default over a given ume horizon. PD estimation process is done based on historical
internal data available with the Company. While arriving at the PD. the Company also ensures that the factors that affects the macro economic
trends are considered to a reasonable extent. wherever necessary. Company caleulates the 12 month PD by 1aking into account the past historical
trends of the Loans portfolio and its credit performance. In case of assets where there is a significant increase in credit risk - credit impaired assets.,

lifetime PD has been apphed

Loss Given Default (LGD)

The LGD represents expected losses on the EAD given the event of default, taking into account. among other attributes, the mtigating effect of
collateral value at the time it is expected to be realised and the time value of money. The Loss Given Default (1.GD) has been computed with
workout methodology. Along with actual recoveries. vatue of the underlying collateral has been factored in to estimate future recoveries in LGD
computation. Workout LGD computation involves the actual recoveries as well as future recoveries (as a part of the workout process) on a
particular facility. as a percentage of balance outstanding at the time of DefaultRestructuring. The assessment of workout LGD was then
performed. Principal outstanding cach loan was assessed. which went into the denominator of the LGD calculation. LGD computation has been
done for each segment and sub-segment separately.

Exposure at Default (EAD)

The amount which the borrower will owe to the portfolio at the time of default is defined as Exposure at Default (EAD). While the drawn credit
line reflects the explicit exposure for the Company. there might be variable exposure that may increase the EAD. These exposures are of the nature
where the Company provides future commitments. in addition to the curvent credit. Therefore. the exposure will contain both on and off balance

sheet values. The value of exposure is given by the following formula:

EAD = Drawn Credit Line + Credit Conversion Factor * Undrawn Credit Line
Where,
Drawn Credit Line = Current outstanding amount
Credit Conversion Factor (CCF) = Expected future drawdown as a proportion of undrawn amount

Undrawn Credit Line = Difference between the total amount which the Company has committed and the drawn credit line While the drawn
exposure and limits for the customer are available, the modelling of CCF is required for computing the EAD

Forward looking adjustments

“A measure of ECL is an unbiased probability-weighted amount that is determined by evalvating a range of possible outcomes and using
reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.”

To tulfil the above requirement Company has incorporated forward looking information into its measurement of ECL. The objective of developing
a macrocconomic model using exogenous macrocconomic variables (MEVs) is 10 address the requirements of unbiased. probability weighted
outcomes while taking into account current conditions as well as future economic conditions. This will be achieved by using the model output to
adjust the PD risk component in order to make it forward looking and probability-weighted.

Exogenous macroeconomic parameters were used as independent (X) variables to predict the dependent (Y) variable. The Company formulates
base case view of the future direction of relevant economic variable as well as a representative range of other possible forecast scenario. This
involves developing two or more additional economic scenarios and considering the relative probabilities of each outcome.
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16.1.

(h)

@

Credit Risk

Data sourcing

[he Company is expected te obtain reasonable and supportable mturmation that s available without undue cost or etfort. Keeping m mind the
abov e requirement macrocconomic information was aggregated from vartous rescarch database like Leonomic Intetligence Unit (LIU). Bloomberg.
World Bank. RBI database ete. The FIU data has a database of around 130 macrocconomic variables as well as their forecasted values. Bevond
2022 macro-cconomic variables are forecasted by mean reverting the values o thenr long term average. External mformation includes economic
data and torecasts published by governmental bodies and monctary authorities in the country. supranational organisations such as the OECD and

the IME. and selected private sector and academic forecasters.

Probability weighted scenario creations:

T o incorporate macroeconomic impact into probabilitv-weighted. cach scenario has an associated probability. In order to ensure consistency across
macroeconomic models. these probabilities were caleulated at an overall level tor both Retail and Non-Retail portfolios. considering the impact of a
scenario across different portfolios may differ based on endogenous factors. the probability of a scenario unfolding is purely exogenous, and hence

should not vary.

The Company has identified and documented key drivers of credit risk and credit losses for cach portfolio of financial instruments and using an

analysis of historical data. has estimated relationship between marco-cconomic variables and credit risk and credit losses.

Predicted relationship between the kev indicators and default and loss rates on various portfolios of financial assess have been developed based on

analysing historical data over the past years.

Impact of COVID-19

The COVID-19 pandemic outbreak across the world inctuding India has resulted in most countries announcing lockdewns and guarantine measures
that have sharply stalled economic activities across the world. The Indian Govermment too has imposed lockdowns starting from March 24, 2020.
Subsequently, the national lockdown was lifted by the government for certain activities in a phased manner outside specified containment zones.
but regional lockdowns restrictions continued to be implemented in arcas with a significant number of COVID-19 cases. The Indian cconomy is
impacted and would continue to be impacted by this pandemic and the resultant lockdown. due to the contraction in industrial and services output
across small and large businesses. The impact of the COVID -19 pandemic . including the current “second wave™ on Company s results. including
credit quality and provisions. gain loss on fair value changes. investment. remains uncertain and dependent on the current and further spread of
COVID -19. steps taken by the government, RBI and other regulators 1o mitigate the cconomic impact and also the time it takes for economic
ssed the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on its liquidity and

activities to resume and reach the normal levels. Further. the Company has ass
ability 10 repay its obligations as and when they are due. Management has considered various tinancial support from banks and other fundraising
opportunitics in determining the Company liquidity position over the next 12 months. Based on the foregoing and necessary stiess tests considering
various scenarios, management believes that the Company will be able to pay its obligations as and when these become due in the foresceable
future. In assessing the recoverability of loans, receivables. deferred tax assets and investments. the Company has considered internal and external
sources of information. including credit reports. economic forecasts and industry reports up to the date of approval of these financial results. Since
the situation continue to evolve, its effect on the operations of the Company may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these

tinancial results. The Company will continue to closely monitor material changes in markets and future cconomic conditions.
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46.1.1. Risk concentration
The followimg table shows the risk concentration by industry for the compaonents of the balance sheet. Addional diselosures for credit

quality and the maximum exposure for credit risk per categories based on the Company s mternal credit assessment systent and sear-

end stage classification are further disclosed in Note 10.

Industry analysis

As at March 31, 2021 Financial = p tail - Housing ~ Retil-Non 0 truction Total
services Housing

Financial assets

Cash and cash cquivalent

and other bank balances 10,291.11 ) ) ) 10.291.11

Sceurities held for trading 155.83 - - - 155.83

Trade receivables 104.02 - - - 104.02

Loans 1,516.31 20,474.41 12,779.91 1,187.96 35,958.59

Investments 1,600.86 - - - 1,600.86

Other financial assets 916.75 - - - 916.75
14,584.88 20,474.41 12,779.91 1,187.96 49,027.16

Loan Commitments - 1,216.08 65.18 - 1,281.26

Total 14,584.88 21,690.49 12,845.09 1,187.96 50,308.42

As at March 31. 2020 me'lcml Retail - Housing Al -'Non Construction Total

services Housing

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalent i .

and other bank balances 5.668.48 ) ) el

Trade receivables 58.46 - - - 58.46

Loans 21.90 25.931.54 16.265.16 982.02 43.200.62

Investments 1.044.73 - - - 1.044.73

Other financial assets 244.92 - - - 244,92

7.038.49 25,931.54 16.265.16 982.02 50.217.21
Loan Commitments - 367.95 81.25 35.00 484.19
Total 7.038.49 26.299.49 16.346.41 1.017.02 50.701.40
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46.1.2. Collateral held and other credit enhancements

(a)

(b)

The tables on the following pages show the maximum exposure to eredit risk by class of financial asset along with details of

principal type of collateral:

Financial assets

Loans (at amortised cost):
Retail Loans

Wholesale Loan

Total (A)

Loan commitments
Total (B)

Total (A + B)

Maximum exposure to credit risk (carrying
amount before ECL)

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31. 2020

34,718.61 42.871.99
218.48 709.00
34,937.08 43.580.99
1,281.26 484.19
1,281.26 484.19
36,218.34 44.065.18

Principal type of
collateral

Property: book receivables
Property: book receivables

Property: book receivables

Financial assets that are stage 3 and related collateral held in order to mitigate potential losses are given below:

As at March 31, 2021

Financial assets

Retail Loan
Wholesale Loan

Total (A)
Loan commitments (Retail)

Total (B)
Total (A + B)

As at March 31. 2020

Financial assets

Retail Loan
Wholesale Loan

Total (A)

Loan commitments

Total (B)
Total (A + B)

Maximum exposure to

Associated ECL

Carrying amount

Fair value of

credit risk (carrying collateral
amount before ECL)
1,275.82 129.86 1,145.96 1,850.70
1,275.82 129.86 1,145.96 1,850.70
13.98 1.40 12.58 20.28
13.98 1.40 12.58 20.28
1,289.80 131.26 1,158.54 1,870.98
738.39 107.60 630.80 3.012.46
22.18 2.81 19.37 90.00
760.57 110.41 650.17 3.102.46
2.38 0.19 2.20 9.69
2.38 0.19 2.20 9.69
762.95 110.60 652.37 3.112.15




LEdelweiss Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2021 (Continued)
(Currencey @ Indian rupees m millions)

46.1.3. Overview of modified and forborne loans

The table below includes assets that were moditied and. theretore. treated as forborne during the year. with the related
modification gain - (loss) suftered by the Company.

Particulars For the year ended Faor the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31. 2020

Amortised costs of financial assets modified during the 241.29

year

Net modification gain * (loss) 12.54 -

46.1.4. Transfer of financial assets

(a) Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety
The following tables provide a summary of financial assets that have been transferred in such a way that part or all of the
transferred financial assets do not qualify for derecognition. together with the associated liabilitics.

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31. 2020
Securitisations
Carrying amount of transferred assets 5,339.87 3.591.91
theld as Collateral)
Carrying amount of associated liabilities 5,288.95 3.564.76
Fair value of assets 5,588.36 3.591.91
Fair value of associated liabilities 5,288.95 3.564.76

Net position at FV 299.41 27.15
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Edclweciss Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Continued)
(Currency @ Indian rupees in mithions)

46.2.

46.2.3.

Liquidity Risk

Financial assets available to support future funding

Following table scts out the availability of Company's financial assets to support funding

As at March 31, 2021

Cash and cash cquivalent including
bank balance

Securities held for trading

Trade receivables

Loans

Investments

Property, Plant and Equipment
Other financial assets

Total assets

As at March 31. 2020

Cash and cash equivalent including
bank balance

Tradc receivables

Loans

Investments

Property, Plant and Equipment
Other financial assets

Total assets

Encumbered Unencumbered Total carrying

Pledge as Contractually/ legally Available as others’ amount

collateral restricted assets collateral
9,463.05 828.06 - 10,291.11
155.83 - - 155.83
104.02 - - 104.02
29,106.20 6,294.15 558.24 35,958.59
- 1,600.86 - 1,600.86
1.21 - - 1.21
166.58 365.84 384.33 916.75
38,996.89 9,088.92 942.57 49,028.37
Encumbered Unencumbered Total carryving
Pledge as Contractually/ legally Available as others ~ amount
collateral restricted assets ! collateral

5,628.39 40.09 0.00 5,668.48
- - 58.46 58.46
37,714.82 4.513.33 972.47 43.200.62
- 1.044.73 - 1.044.73
1.21 - 1.21
43.344.42 5,598.15 1.030.93 49,973.50

Represents assets which are not pledged and the Company believes it is restricted from using to secure funding for legal or other reason

Represents assets which are not restricted for use as collateral. but that the Company would not consider readily available to sccure

funding in the normal course of business



Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Continuced)

(Currency - Indian rupees in millions)

46.3.

46.3.1

Market Risk

Market risk s the risk associated with the eftect of changes in market factors such as interest rates. equits prices. eredit spreads or implied
volatilities. on the value ot asscts and liabilities held resulting m Joss of future carnings. The objective of the Company's market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within aceeptable parameters. The Company separates its exposure to market

risks between trading and non-trading portfolios.

Exposure to market risk — Non trading portfolios

Interest rate risk - The principal risk to which non-trading portfolios are exposed is the risk of loss from fluctuations in the future cash flows
or fair values of financial instruments because of a change in market mterest rates. Interest rate risk 15 managed principally through
monitoring interest rate gaps and by having pre-approved limits for repricing bands.

ALCO is the monitoring body tor compliance with these limits. ALCO reviews the interest rate gap statement and the mix of tloating and
fixed rate assets and labilitics. Balance Sheet Management Unit is in-charge for day to day management of interest rate risk.

Market risk exposure

The fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest rates. The
Company classifies its exposures to market risk into non—trading portiolios.

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 .
Primary risk

Particulars Carrying  Traded risk  Non-traded Carrying Traded risk ~ Non-traded sensitivity
amount risk amount risk :

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalent and 10,291.11 - 10,291.11 5.668.48 - 5.668.48 Interest rate

other bank balances
Interest rate

Securities held for trading - 155.83 155.83 - - - L
Price risk

Loans 35,958.59 - 35,958.59 43.200.62 - 43.200.62 Interest rate

Investments 1,600.86 - 1,600.86 1.044.73 - 1.044.73  Interest rate

Trade receivables 104.02 - 104.02 58.46 - 58.46

Other financial assets 916.75 - 916.75 244.92 - 244,92

Total 48,871.33 155.83 49,027.16 50.217.21 - 50.217.21

Financial Liabilities

Debt securities 11,676.75 - 11,676.75 10,091.57 = 10.091.57  Interest rate
Borrowings (other than Debt 22,628.38 - 22,628.38 27.992.02 - 27.992.02 Interest rate
Securities)

Subordinated liabilities 508.61 - 508.61 508.61 - 508.61 Interest rate
Trade payables 72.28 - 72.28 85.37 - 85.37

Other liabilities 6,373.14 - 6,373.14 3.948.80 - 3.948.80 Interest rate
Total 41,259.16 - 41,259.16 42.626.37 - 42,626.37




Edehw ciss Housing Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees i nulhions)
46.3. Market Risk

46.3.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes m interest rates will affect future cash tlows of financial instruments.
The sensitivity of the statement of profit and loss 1s the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on the profit or loss for a

year. based on the floating rate non—trading financial assets and financial liabilities held as at year end.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates (all other variables being

constant) of the Company “s statement of profit and loss and equity.

INR Loans
Increasc/
For the vear ended (Decrease) in
basis points
INR Loans

March 31, 2021 25/(25)
March 31. 2020 25(25)
INR Borrowings

March 31, 2021 25/(25)
March 31.2020 25/(25)

Increase in profit Decrease in profit Increase in Equity (Decrease) in

after tax after tax Equity
35.74 (35.74 35.74 (35.74)
45.46 (45.40) 45.46 (45.46)
(40.05) 40.05 (40.05) 40.05
(50.97) 50.97 (50.97) 50.97



I.delw ciss Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Continuced)

(Curreney - Indian rupees momilhons)

47.1.

AL

EFair Value measurement:

-

aluation principles

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 1o transfer a habilits in an orderly transaction n the principal tor most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market conditions (e an exit price). regardless of whether that price 1s directly observable or estimated
using a valuation technigue. In order 1o show how Jair values have been derived. financial instruments are classitied based on a hierarchy of valuation

techniques:

Level 1 — valuation technique using quoted market price: financial mstruments with quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets that

company can aceess at the measurement date.

Level 2 — valuation technique using observable inputs: Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are signiticant. are derived from directly or
indirectly obseryable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s hife

Level 3 — valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs: Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the

measurement as whole

Refer note 3.11 for more details on fair value hierarchy
Valuation governance framework

The Company's fair value methodology and the governance over its models includes a number of controls and other procedures to ensure appropriate
safeguards are in place to ensure its quality and adequacy. All new product imtiatives {including their valuation methodologies) ave subject to approvals
by various functions of the Company including the risk and finance functions.

Where fair values are determined by reference to extermally quoted prices or observable pricing inputs to models. independent price determination or
validation is used. For inactive markets, Company sources alternative market information, with greater weight given to information that is considered 10
be more relevant and reliable.

I'he responsibility of ongoing measurement resides with the business and product line divisions. However finance department is also responsible for

establishing procedures governing valuation and ensuring fair values are in compliance with accounting standards.

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy

As at March 31, 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Other financial assets

Security receipts - - 1.600.86 1.600.86
Total financial instruments measured at fair value - C - - 1,600.86 1,600.86
As at March 31, 2020 Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Other financial assets

Security receipts - - 1.044.73 1.044.73
Total financial instruments measured at fair value - C - - 1.044.73 1.044.73

Valuation techniques:
Security receipts

The market for these securities is not active. Therefore. the Company uses valuation techniques to measure their fair values. Since the security receipts
are less liquid instruments therefore they are valued by discounted cash tlow models. Expected cash flow levels are estimated by using quantitative and
qualitative measures regarding the characteristics of the underlying assets including prepayment rates, default rates and other cconomic drivers.
Securities receipts with significant unobservable valuation inputs are classitied as Level 3

T
SBOF AR

. |
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Fdelweiss Housing Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31. 2021 (Continued)

(Curreneys © Indian rupees mamlhons)

47.1. Fair Value measurement:

.. There have been no transfers between levels during the y ear ended March 31,2021 and March 31, 2020.

F.  The following table shows a reconciliation of the opening balances and the closing balances for fair value measurements in Level

3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Financial year ended March 2021 Security receipts [otal
Investments - at April 1, 2020 1,044.73 1,044.73
Purchase 613.53 613.53
Sale Redemption proceeds (57.40) (57.40)

Profit for the vear recognised in profit or loss - -
Investments - at March 31, 2021 W m
Unrealised gain (Loss) related to balances held at the end of the year - -
Financial year ended March 2020 Security receipts Total

[nvestments - at April 1, 2019 - -

Purchase 1.044 .88 1.044.88
Sale/Redemption proceeds (0.14) (0.14)

Profit for the year recognised in profit or loss - -

Investiments - at March 31, 2020 1.044.73 1.044.73

Unrealised gain/(Loss) related to balances held at the end of the year i -

\%
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L.detweiss Thousing Vinance imited
Notes to the financial statemeats for the year ended March 31,2021 (Continued)
tCurreney - Indian rupees i mllions)

47.2. Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The tollowing table sets out the fair vadues of hinancial mstruments not measured at fair value and andalysing them by the level i the Tawr

value hicrarehy into which cach fair value measurement is categorised

\s on March 31, 2021 fotal Carrying - Total fair Level 1 Level 2 Lovel 3
Amount value

Financial assets:

Loans 35.958.89 37.150.32 - - 37.150.32

lotal 35.958.59 37,150.32 - - 37.150.32

Financial liabilities

Debt secunties 11,676.75 11.952.14 - 11,952.14 -

Borrowing (other than debt sceurities) 2.540.58 2,592.38 - 2,592.38 -

Subordinated habilities 508.61 S08.44 - S08.44 -

Total 14,725.94 15.052.97 - 15,052.97 -

Off-balance sheet items

Loan conumitments 1.281.26 640.63 - - 640.63

Total 1.281.26 640.63 - - 640.63

Financial assets:

Loans 43.200.62 J4881.50 . - 44598456

Total 43.200.62 44,884,506 - - 44.884.50

Financial liabilitics

Debt secunties 10.091.57 10.367.03 - 10.367.03 -

Borrowing (other than debt sceurities) 238483 239747 - 239747 -

Subordinated liabilitics 308.61 356.74 - 556.74 -

Total 12.983.01 13.321.24 - 13.321.24 -

Off-balance sheet items

Loan commitments 434,19 242,10 - - 24210

Total 48419 242,10 - - 242,10

Valuation Methodologies of Financial Instruments not measured at fair value

Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are not recorded and
measured at fair value in the Company's financial statements. These fair values were caleulated for disclosure purposes only. The below
methodologies and assumptions relate only to the instruments in the above tables and, as such, may ditfer from the techniques and
assumptions explained in notes.

Short Term Financial Asscts and Liabilities

For financial assets and financial liabilitics that have a shoit-term maturity (less than twelve months), the carrying amounts are a reasonable
approximation of their fair value. Such instruments include: Trade receivables, balances other than cash and cash equivalents, trade payables
and contract liability without a specific maturity. Such amounts have been classified as Level 2 on the basis that no adjustiments have been
made to the balances in the balance sheet.

Financial assets at amortised cost

The fair values of financial assets measured at amortised cost are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on contractual cash
tlows using actual or estimated yiclds and discounting by yields incorporating the counterparties” credit nisk. In case of floating interest rate
linked loans, since such loans are subject 1o repricing periodically tless than twelve months), with the interest rate reflecting current market
price. Hence carrying value of such loans 1s deemed to be equivalent of fair value.

Issucd Debt

The fair value of issued debt is estimated by a discounted cash flow model incorporating the Company's own credit risk.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The fair values of financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on contractual cash
tflows using actual or estimated yiclds and discounting by yields. In case of floating interest rate linked borrowings. since such borrowings are
subject to repricing periodically (less than twelve months), with the interest rate reflecting curvent inarket price. Hence carrying value of such
borrowings is deemed to be equivalent of fair value.




Edelwciss Housing Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (Continued)
(Currencey @ Indwan rupees m millions)

48. Trade reccivables

Provision matrix for Trade receivables

morc than

Particulars Trade reccivables days past due 1-90days 91-180 days 181-360 days Total
. 360 days

ECL rate 2.17% 11.67% 48.80%0 100.00"
As at Estimated total gross carrying amount at default 104.36 0.00 3.78 0.10 108.21
March 31,2021  ECL - Simplified approach (2.26) 0.00 (1.83) (0.10) (4.19)

Net carrying amount 102.10 - 1.92 - 104.02
As at Estimated total gross carrying amount at default 11.42 0.33 0.81 0.10 12.66
March 31.2020 ECL - Simplified approach (0.01) (0.00) (0.14) (0.10) (0.206)

Net carrying amount 11.41 0.33 0.67 - 12.40
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49 Details of the loan taken from Banks and other partics

Nature of security and terms of repayment for secured borrowings (other than debentures):
All secured long term borrowings are secured by way of hypothecation of receivables i.e. loans and advances and corporate guarantee
from the ultimate holding company and or holding company.

(a) From Banks
As at March 31, 2021

Month of Maturity / Rate of Interest Total
Repayment < 10% 10.01-11.00%

December-2024 739.63 - 739.63
September-2024 72.90 - 72.90
June-2024 762.08 - 762.08
March-2024 506.74 - 506.74
December-2023 1,253.58 - 1,253.58
Sceptember-2023 901.41 - 901.41
June-2023 1,645.08 - 1,645.08
March-2023 1,005.90 - 1,005.90
December-2022 1,879.47 - 1,879.47
September-2022 1,266.24 - 1,266.24
June-2022 1,919.43 - 1,919.43
March-2022 1,280.25 . 1,280.25
December-2021 1,919.43 - 1,919.43
September-2021 1,499.55 - 1,499.55
June-2021 2,180.00 - 2,180.00
Total 18,831.69 - 18,831.69
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49 Details of the loan taken from Banks and other partics

(a) From Banks
As at March 31. 2020

Month of Maturity Rate of Interest Total
Repay ment < 10% 10.01-11.00%
February-2025 - 35.71 35.71
December-2024 697.92 - 697.92
November-2024 - 35.71 335.71
September-2024 72.92 - 72.92
August-2024 - 35.71 35.71
June-2024 747.92 - 747.92
May-2024 - 35.71 35.71
March-2024 226.32 - 226.32
February-2024 - 35.71 35.71
December-2023 852.12 - 852.12
November-2023 - 3571 35.71
September-2023 595.54 - 595.54
August-2023 - 35.71 35.71
June-2023 1,283.04 - 1,283.04
May-2023 - 35.71 35.71
March-2023 1,001.79 - 1.001.79
February-2023 - 35.71 35.71
December-2022 1.744.06 - 1.744.06
November-2022 - 35.71 35.71
September-2022 1,276.14 - 1,276.14
August-2022 - 35.71 35.71
June-2022 1,901.14 - 1.901.14
May-2022 - 3571 35.71
March-2022 1,276.14 - 1,276.14
February-2022 - 35.71 35.71
December-2021 1.901.14 - 1,901.14
November-2021 - 35.71 35.71
September-2021 1,276.14 - 1.276.14
August-2021 - 35.71 35.71
June-2021 1,901.14 - 1.901.14
May-2021 - 3571 35.71
March-2021 1,613.21 35.90 1,649.11
February-2021 33.33 35.71 69.05
December-2020 1,619.89 35.71 1.655.60
November-2020 33.33 35.71 69.05
September-2020 1.794.47 35.71 1.830.18
August-2020 80.21 35.71 115.92
June-2020 1,888.65 35.71 1,924.36
May-2020 80.21 35.71 115.92
Total 23,896.73 857.32 24.754.05
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49 Details of the loan taken from Banks and other partics

(b) From The National Housing Bank
As at March 31, 2021

Month of Maturity / Rate of Interest Total
Repayment <6.5% 6.5% to <=8.50% 8.51% to 9.5% >9.50%
October-2030 - 10.61 - - 10.61
July-2030 - 19.80 - - 19.80
April-2030 - 19.80 - - 19.80
January-2030 - 19.80 - - 19.80
October-2029 - 19.80 - - 19.80
July-2029 - 20.15 - - 20.15
April-2029 - 24.81 - - 24.81
January-2029 - 33.06 - - 33.06
October-2028 - 33.20 - - 33.20
July-2028 - 33.20 - - 33.20
April-2028 - 33.20 - - 33.20
January-2028 - 33.20 - - 33.20
October-2027 - 33.20 - - 33.20
July-2027 - 33.20 - - 33.20
April-2027 - 33.20 - - 33.20
January-2027 - 33.20 - - 33.20
October-2026 - 33.20 - - 33.20
July-2026 - 33.20 - - 33.20
April-2026 - 33.20 - - 33.20
January-2026 - 33.20 - - 33.20
October-2025 - 33.20 - - 33.20
July-2025 27.30 33.20 - - 60.50
April-2025 30.50 33.20 - - 63.70
January-2025 3145 33.20 - - 64.65
October-2024 31.95 33.20 - - 65.15
July-2024 39.97 33.20 - - 73.17
April-2024 41.21 33.20 - - 74.41
January-2024 41.21 33.20 2 - 74.41
October-2023 41.21 33.20 - - 74.41
July-2023 41.21 33.20 - - 74.41
April-2023 41.21 33.20 5.99 - 80.40
January-2023 41.21 33.20 7.24 - 81.64
October-2022 41.21 33.20 7.24 - 81.64
July-2022 42.19 33.20 7.24 - 82.62
April-2022 44.60 33.20 7.24 - 85.03
January-2022 44,60 33.20 7.24 - 85.03
October-2021 44.60 33.20 7.24 - 85.03
July-2021 44.60 33.20 7.24 - 85.03
May-2021 650.00 - - - 650.00
Total 1,320.23 1,163.83 56.67 - 2,540.66
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49 Details of the loan taken from Banks and other partics

(b) From The National Housing Bank
As at March 31. 2020

Rate of Interest

Month of Maturity Total
Repayment 6.5% 6.5% to ==8.50"% 8.51% 10 9.5% -9.50%

October-2031 - - - 9.4 9.40
July-2031 - - - 20,22 20.22
April-2031 - - - 20.66 20.66
January-2031 - - - 20.66 20.66
October-2030 - - - 20.66 20.66
July-2030 - - - 20.66 20.66
April-2030 - - 6.74 20.66 2740
January-2030 - - 12,74 20.66 3340
October-2029 - - 12.74 20.66 3340
July-2029 - - 12,74 20.60 3340
April-2029 - - 12.74 20.66 3340
January-2029 - - 12,74 20.66 3340
October-2028 - - 12.74 20.66 3340
July-2028 - - 12.74 20.66 3340
April-2028 - - 12.74 20.66 3340
January-2028 - - 12.74 20.66 3340
October-2027 - - 12.74 20.66 3340
July-2027 - - 12.74 20.66 3340
April-2027 - - 12.74 20.66 3340
January-2027 - - 12.74 20.66 33.40
October-2026 - - 12.74 20.66 3340
July-2026 - - 12.74 20.66 3340
April-2026 - - 12.74 20.66 33.40
January-2026 - - 12.74 20.66 3340
October-2025 - - 12.74 20.66 3340
July-2025 27.30 - 12.74 20.66 60.70
April-2025 30.50 - 12.74 20.66 63.90
January-2025 3145 - 12.74 20.66 64.85
October-2024 3195 0.37 12.74 20.66 65.72
July-2024 39.97 0.48 12,74 20.66 73.85
April-2024 4121 0.48 12.74 20.66 75.09
January-2024 41.21 0.48 12.74 20.66 75.09
October-2023 41.21 0.48 12.74 20.66 75.09
July-2023 41.21 0.48 12.74 20.66 75.09
April-2023 41.21 0.48 18.73 20.66 81.08
January-2023 41.21 0.48 19.97 20.66 82.32
October-2022 41.21 048 19.97 20.66 82.32
July-2022 41.21 048 20.95 20.66 83.30
April-2022 41.21 0.48 23.36 20.66 85.71
January-2022 41.21 0.48 23.36 20.66 85.71
October-2021 41.21 0.48 23.36 20.66 85.71
July-2021 41.21 0.48 23.36 20.66 85.71
April-2021 41.21 0.48 23.36 20.66 85.71
January-2021 41.21 0.48 23.36 20.66 85.71
October-2020 41.21 0.48 23.36 20.66 85.71
July-2020 41.21 0.48 23.36 20.66 85.71
Total 820.53 8.52 617.12 938.66 2,384.83
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Repay ment terms of Secured Non-convertible Debentures are as follow.

As at March 31. 2021

Description of Secured Redeemable Non
Convertible Debentures (NCD)

EHFL 10.28%, Monthly**

EHFL/Public NCD/Series VI

EHFL/Public NCD/Series VI
EHFL/Public NCD/Series V
EHFL/NCD/29Apr26
EHFL/NCD/30Jun22
EHFL_Recisssuance
EHFL/NCD/21Jun22
EHFL/NCD/19May22
EHFL/NCD/18May22
EHFL/NCD/04Mar22
EHFL/NCD/14Feb22
EHFL/NCD/03Jan22
EHFL/Public NCD/Series IV
EHFL/Public NCD/Series I11
EHFL/NCD/15Apr21

Total

Rate

10.28%

0.00%

10.00%

9.57%
9.62%
8.55%
8.55%
8.55%
8.55%
9.25%
9.25%
9.25%
9.05%
0.00%
9.75%
0.00%

Issuc Date

18-Mar-2019
19-Jul-2016
19-Jul-2016
19-Jul-2016
29-Apr-2016
30-Jun-2017
12-Jul-2017
21-Jun-2017
19-May-2017
18-Nov-2020
04-Sep-2020
14-Aug-2020
03-Jul-2020
19-Jul-2016
19-Jul-2016
22-Mar-2018

Redemption Date

18-Mar-2029
19-Jul-2026
19-Jul-2026
19-Jul-2026
29-Apr-2026
30-Jun-2022
30-Jun-2022
21-Jun-2022
19-May-2022
18-May-2022
04-Mar-2022
14-Feb-2022
03-Jan-2022
19-Jul-2021
19-Jul-2021
15-Apr-2021

No. of NCDs

1.500
59,841
33,47,060
2,48,424
250

100

200

500

500
1,000
750
1,000
1,000
41,498
4,42,341
178

Amount

1,500.00
59.84
3,347.06
248.42
250.00
100.00
200.00
500.00
500.00
1,000.00
750.00
1,000.00
1,000.00
41.50
442.34
178.00
11,117.16

**All Secured NCDs are fully secured by way of mortgage of identificd immovablce property as stated in the respective debenture trust
decd(s) and/ or by way of charge’ hypothecation of book debts' recetvables’ loan reccivables. on first / pari-passu basis. to the extent
stated in the respective information memorandum read with the underlying debenture trust deed.

As at March 31, 2020

Description of Securcd Redeemable Non

Convertible Debentures (NCD)

EHFL 10.28%, Monthly**
EHFL/Public NCD Series VI
EHFL/Public NCD/Series VI
EHFL/Public NCD/Series V
EHFL/NCD/29Apr26
EHFL/NCD/30Jun22

EHFL Reisssuance
EHFL/NCD/21Jun22
EHFL/NCD/19May22
EHFL Aug 2021
EHFL/Public NCD/Series IV
EHFL/Public NCD Series II
EHFL ZCB 2021
EHFL/NCD/15Apr21
EHFL/NCD/15Apr21
EHFL/NCD/02Jun20

EHFL Reissuance 2

EHFL Reisssuance
EHFL/NCD/12May20

Total

Rate

10.28%

0.00%

10.00%

9.57%
9.62%
8.55%
8.55%
8.55%
8.55%
0.00%
0.00%
9.75%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Issuc Date

18-Mar-2019
19-Jul-2016
19-Jul-2016
19-Jut-2016
29-Apr-2016
30-Jun-2017
12-Jul-2017
21-Jun-2017
19-May-2017
27-Jul-2018
19-Jul-2016
19-Jul-2016
04-Apr-2018
20-Feb-2018
22-Mar-2018
13-Jun-2017
20-Jul-2017
19-Sep-2017
21-Apr-2017

Redemption Date

18-Mar-2029
19-Jul-2026
19-Jul-2026
19-Jul-2026
29-Apr-2026
30-Jun-2022
30-Jun-2022
21-Jun-2022
19-May-2022
12-Aug-2021
19-Jul-2021
19-jul-2021
04-May-2021
15-Apr-2021
15-Apr-2021
02-Jun-2020
02-Jun-2020
02-Jun-2020
12-May-2020

No. of NCDs

1.500
59.841
34,62.048
2.48.424
250

100

200

500

500

500
41.815
5.89.016
450

70

178

100

300

150

125

Amount

1.500.00
59.84
3.462.05
248.42
250.00
100.00
200.00
500.00
500.00
500.00
41.82
589.02
450.00
70.00
178.00
100.00
300.00
150.00
125.00
9,324.14

**All Secured NCDs are fully secured by way of mortgage of identified immovable property as stated in the respective debenture trust
deed(s) and’ or by way of charge’ hypothecation of book debts’ receivables’ loan receivables. on first / pari- passu basis, to the extent

stated in the respective information memorandum read with the underlying debenture trust deed.
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Details of Unsecured Subordinated Debentures

As at March 31, 2021

Description of Unsecured Redecmable Non :
7 E i § No. of N ;

Convertible Debentures (NCD) CouponRate  Issue Date Redemption Date 0. of NCDs Amount

EHFL/NCD/3May2025 11.25% 04-Feb-2015 03-May-2025 500 500.00

As at March 31. 2020

Description of Unsecured Redeemable Non . - .

. ate ssuc Date ede ate No. of NCDs

Convertible Debentures (NCD) CouponRate Issue Date Redemption Date 0. of NCDs Amount

03-May-2025 500 500.00

EHFL/NCD 3May2025 11.25% 04-Feb-2015
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(a)

(b)

Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally
imposed capital requirements from its regulators and maintains strong credit vatings and healthy capital rattos morder to support its

business and to maximise sharcholder value.

The Pillars of its policy are as follows:

a) Maintain diversity of sources of financing and spreading the maturity across tenure buckets in order to mimmize hquidity risk.

b) Maintain investment grade ratings for all its habilities ssuances domestically and mternationally by ensuring that the financial

strength of their balance sheets are preserved.

¢) Manage financial market risks arising from Interest rate. equity prices and miimise the impact of market volatility on earnings.

d) Leverage optimally in order to maximise shareholder returns while maintaining strength and flexibility of balance shect.

This framework is adjusted based on underlying macro-cconomic factors affecting business environment. financial market conditions

and interest rates environment

Regulatory Capital

The below regulatory capital is computed in accordance with the relevant regulatory guidelines.

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Capital Funds
Common Equity Tierl (CET!) capital 6,676.41 7.499.78
Other Tier 2 capital instruments (CET2) - 144.08
Total capital 6,676.41 7.643.86
Risk weighted assets 25,205.72 26.758.65
CETI1 Capital ratio 26.49% 28.03%
CET?2 Capital ratio 0.00% 0.54%
26.49% 28.57%

Total Capital ratio
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Regulatory disclosures

The following minimum disclosures have been given in  accordance with RBI  Circular No. RBI2020-2173
DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated February 17.2021 on Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company —
Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions. 2021 read with Circular RBI'2019-20170 DOR
(NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109/22.10.106/2019-20 on Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards dated March 13, 2020.

Statutory reserve

As per Section 29C of the The National Housing Bank Act. 1987 (the “NHB Act”). the company is required to transfer at least 20%
of its net profits every year to a reserve before any dividend is declared. For this purpose any Special Reserve created by the
company under Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income- tax Act. is considered to be an eligible transfer. The company has transferred an
amount of Rs. 3.00 million (Previous Year Rs. 2.49 million) to Special Reserve No. Il in terims of Section 36(1){viii) of the Income-
tax Act, 1961 and an amount of Rs.4.46 million (Previous Year Rs. 0.63 million) to “Statutors Reserve (As per Section 29C of The
NHB Act)™.

Reserve Fund under section 29C of National Housing Bank Act, 1987

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 | As at March 31, 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year Amount Amount
a)  Statutory Reserve w's 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 151.20 150.57
b)  Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 389.14 386.65

taken into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under
section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

c) Total 540.34 537.22
Addition/Appropriation/Withdrawal during the year
Add: a)  Amount transferred u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 4.46 0.63
b)  Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 3.00 2.49

taken into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under
section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

Less: a)  Amount appropriated from the Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the - -
NHB Act, 1987

b)  Amount withdrawn from the Special Reserve u/'s 36(1)(viii) of] - -
Income Tax Act, 1961 which has been taken into account for the
purpose of provision u/ s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

Balance at the end of the vear

a)  Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 155.66 151.20

b)  Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 392.14 389.14
taken into account for the purpose of Statutory Reserve under
section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

¢) Total 547.80 540.34
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53, Regulatory disclosurces
(ity  Fraud Reporting
There were fraud cases agreegating 10 Rs.1.97 mullions (Previous yvear Rs, 31.94 mullions) identified and reported to NHB during the financial
vear ended on March 31. 2021,
(iti)  Foreign Exchange Transaction and Un-hedged Foreign Currency Risk
The Company has not undertaken any foreign currency transaction during the vear ended March 31, 2021 (Previous year: Rs Nil). Also the
company does not have any un-hedged foreign curreny exposure as at March 31. 2021 ( Previous year Rs. Nil)
(iv)  Details of dues to micro enterprise and small enterprise
Trade Payables include Rs. Nil (Previous year: Rs. Nil) payable to “Suppliers™ registered under the Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006. Interest Rs 0.03 millions has been paid by the Company during the year to “Suppliers™ registered under this Act. The
aforementioned is based on the responses received by the Company to its inquiries with suppliers with regard to applicability under the said act.
(v)  Capital to risk assets ratio (CRAR)
As at March 31,2021 As at March 31. 2020
) CRAR (%) 26.49% 28.57%
(ii) CRAR - Tier I capital (%) 26.49% 28.03%
(iii) CRAR - Tier Il Capital (%) - 0.54%
(iv) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-11 capital - -
(v) Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt instruments - -
(vi)  Investments
Value of Investments As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
(i)  Gross value of Investments
(a) In India 1,600.86 1.044.73
(b) Outside India Nil Nil
(ii)  Provisions for Depreciation
(a) In India Nil Nil
(b) Outside India Nil Nil
(iii)  Net value of Investiments
(a) In India 1,600.86 1.044.73
(b) Outside India Nil Nil
Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments
(i}  Opening balance Nil Nil
(i1)  Add: Provisions made during the year Nil Nil
(i1)  Less: Write-off / Written-bank of excess provisions during the ycar Nil Nil
(iv) Closing balance Nil Nil
(vii)  Derivatives and Long Term Contracts

The Company has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts are assessed for material foreseeable losses. At the year end, the
Company has reviewed and ensured that adequate provision as required under any law / accounting standards for material foreseeable losses on
such long term contracts has been made in the books of account. The Company has not entered into any derivative contracts during the year.
(Previous year Rs. Nil) and hence detailed disclosure is not required.
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23, Regulatory disclosures

(viil)  Forward Rate Agreement (FRA) / Interest Rate Swap (IRS)

Asat March 31,2021 As at March 31,2020

(1) The notional principal of swap agreements Nil Nil
(11} Losses which would be incurred if counterpartics failed to fulfil their

S e i

obligations under the agreements Nil Nil

(i} Collateral required by the HFC upon entering into swaps Nil Nil

(iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps Nil Nil

(v)  The fair valuc of the swap book Nil Nil

(ix)  Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Dervivative

()
(i}
(iii)

(iv)

Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives undertaken during
the year (instrumentwise)

Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding as on
March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 (instrument-wise)

Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not
"highly effective” (instrument-wisc)

Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not
"highly effective" (instrument-wise)

As at March 31, 2021
Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil

As at March 31, 2020

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

(x)  Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives

A. Qualitative Disclosure

The Company has not entered into any derivative contracts during the year. (Previous year Rs. Nil)

B. Quantitative Disclosure

0
(ii)

(iii)
(iv)

Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount)
Marked to Market Positions [ 1]
(a) Assets (+)
(b) Liability (-)
Credit Exposure [2]
Unhedged Exposurcs

As at March 31, 2021
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

As at March 31. 2020
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

/
&, . /4
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21 Reuulatory disclosures

Wi Securitisation Direet Asignmeni:

@ Disclosures i the notes 1o the accounts i respect oF secuntisanion ransactons as requirad under revised catdelines on securitizaten ransactions tssued by NEB vide
circutar no. NHB HEC.CO-DIRT MPD&CEO 2010

Particulars Asat W
Mareh 31, 2021 NMarch 31,2020
1 No.,of SPVs spensored by the HEC for securitisation transactions i |
2 Fotal amowm of securitised assets as per books of the SPV's sponsored by the HEC 0.23 288
3 Total amaunt of exposures retained by the HIC to comply with MRR as on the date of balance sheet - -
() Off-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements
al First Loss - -
b) Others - -
(i) On-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements
a) First Loss -
b} Others -
4 Anrount of exposures to securitisation tansactions other than MRR 10.60 160
(i) Ott-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Fohancements
a) kxposure o own securitisations
1) First Loss .

11.) Others
b) Lxposure to third party securitisations
1) First Loss
ii.) Others
(i} On-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements
a) Exposure to own securitisations
i.) First Loss 10.60 1060
ii.) Others . -
b} Exposure to third pany securitisations
i.) First Loss
ii.} Others - -
* Only the SPV's relating to outstanding securitisation transactions may be reported here

(b) Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisation - Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstiuction

Particulars Asat at
March 31,2021 March 31. 2020
i} No. of accounts 452 307
i} Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC RC 1.368.15 1.475.99
iif) Aggregate consideration 1.176.00 1.325.00
iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years - -
v) Aggregate gain - loss over net book vatue (192.15) (150.99)

.,
(77
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(d)

(e)

Regulatory disclosures

Disclosures i the notes to the accannts in respect of assignnient transactions as required under revised cuidelines on securitizanon ransactions tsued by NHB vide

crreular no, NHBHEC CG-DIR TAD&CEO 2016

Asat ~at
Mareh 31,2021 March 31,2020
I Nooof transactions assigned by the HIC 23 16
2 lotalamount outstanding 13,308.1% 1038020
3 lotal amount of exposuares retained by the HEC o comply with MRR as onthe date of balance sheet 5.94 9107
h Off-balance sheet exposares
a) birst Loss - -
b) Others -
(1 On-balance sheet exposures
a) First Loss - -
b) Others 1.285.94 11.07
4 Amount of exposures to assignment transactions other than MRR 746.18 55550
(N Off-balance sheet exposures
a) Exposure 1o own assignments
i.} First Loss - -
ii.) Others -
b) Exposure to third pany assigmnents
i.) First Loss - -
ii.) Others -
(I On-balance sheet exposures
746.18 355.50

a) Exposure to own assignments

i.) First Loss

ii.) Others

b) Exposure to third party assignments
i.) First Loss

ii.) Others

Details of Assigimnent transactions undertaken by HFCs

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31. 2020

i) No. of accounts 5.159.00 1.650.00
i) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold 8.778.14 5.601.89
iiii) Aggregate consideration 8.778.14 5.601.89
iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accoums transferred in earlier years - -
V) Aggregate pain loss over net book value -
Details of non-performing financials assets purchased / sold
During the year the Company lhas not purchases non-performing financials assets. (Previous year : Nil)
A. Details of non-performing financial assets purchased :
Asat Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31. 2020
1 (a) No. of accounts purchased during the year Nil Nil
(b) Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
2 {a) Ofthese. number of accounts restructured during the year Nit Nil
(b) _Apgregate outstanding Nil \il
B. Details of Non-performing Financial Asvets sold:
Asat As at
March 31. 2021 March 31. 2020
I No. of accounts sold 452.00 307.00
2 Aggregate outstanding 1.368.15 1.475.99
3 Aggregate consideration received 1.£76.00 1.325.00
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21 Regulatory disclosures

wiis  Disclosure of Restructured Accounts < Micro, Small and Medium Emterprises (MSME) sector
(as required by RBI guidelines under reference RBI2018-19 1010 DBR.No.BP.BC.1E 2104048 2018-19 dated January 01, 2019 read with RBI circular
RBE2019-20/160 DORN0.BP.BC.34 21.04.048 2019-20 dated February 11,2020 and RB1 2020-21 17 DORN0.BP.BC 4 2104048 2020-21 dated \ugust 6.

2020)
N For the year ended
Particulars o !
March 31,2021 March 1. 2020
\o of accounts restiuctured 24 -
Amount (Indian rupees in millions} 105.70

(niii)

Exposure to real estate sector
a) Exposure to real estate sector, both direct and indirect

Category

Asat
March 31, 2021

\s at
March 31,2020

a) Direct exposure

(i) Residential mortgages -
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be occupied by the borrower or that 31.860.02 383.473.34
is rented: [Individual housing loans up to Rs. 15 lakh Rs. 8.161.32 million (Previous Year Rs. 9.238.24
million)]
(i) Commercial real estate -
Lending secured by mortgages on comnercial real estates (office buildings. retail space. multipurpose 4.034.05 5.28067
commercial prentises. multi-family residential buildings. multi-tenanted commercial premises. industrial or|
warehouse space. hotels. land acquisition. development and construction. etc).
(iii} Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised exposures
a) Residential Nil Nil
b) Commercial real estate Nil Nil
b) Indirect exposure
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB)} and Housing Finance Nil Nil
Companies (HFCs)
b) Exposure to capital market
Particulars gl Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31. 2020
(i) direct investment in equity shares. convertible bonds. convertible debentures and units of equity-oriented 65.72 Nil
mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt
(i) advances against shares  bonds ~ debentures or other securitics or on clean basis to individuals for Nil Nid
investment in shares (including [POs = ESOPs). conventible bonds. convertible debentures. and units of]
equity-oriented mutual funds
(iti) advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of Nil \il
equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security
(iv) advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or convertible Nil Nil
bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security other
than shares  convertible bonds  convertible debentures  units of equity oriented mutual funds "does not fully
cover the advances
(v} secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market Nil Nil
makers
(vi) loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares  bonds  debentures or other securities or on Nit Nl
clean basis for meeting promoter’s contribution to the equity of new companics in anticipation of raising
resources
(vii) bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows  issues Nil Nil
(viii) all exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered) Nil Nil
65.72 Nil

Total Exposure to Capital Market
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v the financial statements (Continued )
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Regulators disclosures
Details of financing of parent Company products - Nil (Previous year - Nil)
Derails of Single Borvower Limit (SBL) © Group Borvower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the 111€

Dirmg the year ended March 31202 Fand March 312020 the Company s credit exposure iwhether in terms of sancuoned amount or entire amount vutstanding

whichever 1s ligher) to single borrowers and group borrowers were withun the hnnts prescribed by the NHB.

Unsecured Advances
The Company hias not taken any charge over the rights. licenses, authorisations, ete.. against unsecuwred loans given 1o borrowers m the cunent year and previous

vear.
Remuneration of Directors
The Company has not entered mto any transactions with non-executive dnectors during the year |Previous Year Rs il except for those disclosed in note 33
(xxxv)
Net Profit or Losy for the peviod, prior period items and changes in accounting policies

There are no prior period items during the year (Previous Year R<Nil) and no change in any accounting policy from last year

Avee ing Standard 21 - Consolidated Financial Statemeents (CFS)

'S

The company does not have any subsidiary. associate. or joint venture in the current vear and previous vear and hence consolidation of accounts is not required.

Details of ‘provisions and contingencies’

Break up of 'provisions and Contingencies’ shown under the head expenditure in statement of profit and For the vear ended| For the year ended
loss. March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(i) Provisions for depreciation on investment Nil Nil
(i) Provision towards NPA - (Stage 111 Joans) 21.16 30.29)
(iii}  Provision made towards income tax (51.25) 88.66
(iv)  Provision for standard assets* (with details like teaser loan. CRE. CRE-RH ete ) - Stage 1 & 1 loans 64.07 77.13
(v} Other provision and contingencies Nil il
* Provision for Stage | & 11 loans include CRE - RH of Rs (53.23) million (Previous Year Rs 61.84 million). CRE - Non-RH of Rs (1 1.88} million (Previous
Year Rs 19.71 million). Non CRE of Rs 129.18 miltion (Previous Year Rs {4.43) million).
. p Housing Non-Housing
ke uf,::\t:;z:jﬁtx:nmes . As at March 31, 2021 Asat March 31, [ Asat March 31 | Asat March 31,
2020 2021 2020
Standard Assets
(a) Total Quistanding Amount # 20.969.93 25.852.05 14.207.83 16.997.82
(b) Provisions made 217.38 138.36 145.90 110.83
Sub-Standard Assets**
(a) Total Owtstanding Amount 932.94 298.06 223.64 90.45
(b} Provisions made 95.64 33.30 20.67 8.41
Doubtful Assets — Category-1**
(a) Total Qutstanding Amount 54.62 103.18 2.01 33.07
(b) Provisions made 597 11.92 0.18 2.93
Doubtful Assets — Category-I11%*
(a) Total Qutstanding Amount 2491 110.37 1593 63.60
(b) Provisions made 249 12.28 1.77 6.36
Doubtful Assets — Category-I111+*
(a) Total Outstanding Amount 16.60 29.79 2.51 6.03
(b Provisions made 1.83 345 0.53 6.03
L.oss Assets**
{a) Total Qutstanding Amount 2.67 2591 -
(b) Provisions made 2.67 2591 -
TOTAL
(a) Total Qutstanding Amount 22.001.66 26.419.36 14.451.93 17.190.97
(b) Provisions made 325,95 275.22 169.05 134.56
** Represent Stage [11 loans
Note:
# Housing Non-Housing
Standard Assets Asat March 31, 2021 Asat March 31, | Asat March 31, As at March 31,
2020 2021 2020
Principal ¢ i 20.761.81 25.627.17 13.603.92 16.408.17
Interest accrued 236.21 253.65 236.16 249.66
EIR and other Ind AS adjustment (28.09) (25.77) 367.75 339.99
2. The Category of Doubtful Assets will be as under:
Period for which the assets has been considered as doubtful Category
Up to one year Category-I
O to three years Category-I1
More than three years Category-III
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Draw Down from Reverves

The Company has draswn R 12793 nullion ePrevious Year Rso Nl from the debeniure redemption resern e and transterred to retamed canmmes on redemption
of debentures ull March 21,2021 Futher, pursuant o the amendments in the Compannes Aot 20013 debenture redemption reserve is not requird o be created
for debentures issued by Non-Banking Finanee Companies tincluding Housing Finance Companiest regubated by Resenve Bank of India

Concentration of Public Deposin, Advances, Exposures and NP As

Concentration of Public Deposits (for Public Deposit taking holding 11FCs)

Particular Asat Anat
Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Total Deposit of twenty fargest depositors NA NA
%o of deposits to twenty largest depositors to total Deposits of the HEC ARY N\ A
Concentration of Loans & Advances
Particular Asat W at
March 31, 2021 March 1. 2020
Total Loans & Advances to twenty largest borrowers 3456.50 179101
%o of L.oans & Advances to twenty largest borrowers to total advances of the HEC 9.48"% 4.11%
Concentration of all exposure (including off-balance sheet exposure)
Particular Asat 4 ot
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Fotal exposures to twenty largest borrowers - customers 3.445.64 1.830.40
Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers  customers to Total Exposure of the HEC 9.21% 4.18%
on hoIrowers  customers
Concentration of NPAs (Stage 1 loans)
Particular Asat 3
March 31, 202t March 31,2020
Total exposures to top ten NP As 197.87 17248

Sector-wise NPAs (Stage 111 loans)

%o of NPAs to total advances in that
SL sector
No. . Ay at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
A. jHousing Loans:
U [Individual 4.91% 2.08%
2 |Builders  Project Loans 0.00% 2.29%
3 |Comporates 9.11% 6.08%
4 {Other (specify) 0.00% 0.00%
B. [Non-lousing Loans:
I |Individual 207% 1.16%
2 |Builders  Project | oans 0.00% 0.00%
3 |Comporates 0.00% 0.00%
4 [Other (HUF & Partaership Firm) 0.08% 1.43%
* NPAs represents Stage 111 loans
(xxiv) Mavements of NPAs (Stage T loany)
The following table sets forth. for the periods indicated. the details of mosement of gross Non-performing assets (NP As). et NP As and provision
Particular et e
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
i) Net NPAs to net advances (%) 3.05% 1.49%
it)  Movement of Gross NPAs
a) Opening balance 760.57 98291
b) Additions during the vear 2.330.88 1.571.29
¢) Reductions during the year (1.815.67) (1.793.63)
d) Closing balance 1.275.78 760.57
iii) Movement of net NPAs
a) Opening balance 649.99 842.03
b) Additions during the year 2.045.97 1.358.59
¢) Reductions during the year (1.551.91) (1.350.63)
d) Closing balance 1.144.05 649.99
iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs
a) Opening balance 110.58 140.88
b) Provisions made during the year 28491 212.70
¢) Write-ofT write-back of excess provisions (263.76) (243.00)
d) Closing balance 131.73 110.58

=)
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33 Regulatory Disclosures

(\avidi) Note to the balance sheet of a non-deposit taking National Housing Banking Company

Note o the balance sheet of a nonsdeposit taking Natonal Houstng Bankine Company as required e ternis of pardziaph 18 of Master Dirccuen- Naoomal Housimg
Banking Company- Systematically Tnportant Non-Deposit taking Conpany aind Deposit ke Compans (Resenve Baek) Directions, 2016 read with Fhe Resene
Bank of India ¢ RBI y vide Cireolar Noo RBE2020-21 73 DORFIN HEC.CC NO 20003 10 E30 202020 on Master Direcoon = Non-Bankig Financial Company
Housmg Fmance Company 1Resenve Banky Directions, 2021 dated Februan 17,2021

Liabilities side:

\mount outstanding Amount oyerdue
Particulars As at Asat As at Asat
March 31,2021 March 31,2020 March 31, 2021]  Narch 31, 2020
1) Loans and advances availed by NHB nclusive of interest acerued thercon but not pand
a) Debemures:
(other than those falling within the meamng of Public deposit)
(Y  Sceured 11.676.75 10.091.57 - -
(i) Unsecured 508.61 s03.01 - -
by Deferred credits - - - -
¢} Term loans 22.479.11 27.340.22 - -
d)  Inter-corporate loans and barrow my - - - -
¢)  Commercial paper - - - -
) Other loans . R R .
(i»  Loan from related parties - 1301 - -
(it} Bank overdraft 149.27 029.09 - -
{* Please see note | below)
Assets side:
2) Break up of loans and advances meluding bills receivables
tother than those mcluded m (31 below)
a) Secured 34.937.09 3.380.99 - -
b) Unsecured 1.516.49 29.40 - -

3) Break up of teased assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards AFC acunitics
a) Leasc assets including lease remtals under sundry debtors:
(i) Financial lease -
(iiv  Operating lease -
b) Steck on hire includmg bire cha under sundry debtors
(ir Assets on hire -
(i) Repossessed assets -

¢) Other loans counting towards asset inancing Company activities
1) Loans where assets have been repossessed -
tity - Other loans -




I delweiss Housing Finange §invited
Notes to the financial ststements (Continucds
TCumeney Indran rupees momilhonsy

33 Regulatory Disclosures

(\\iii)

Note to the balance sheet of a non-depasit taking National Housing Banking Conpany

Note to the balance sheet of a non-deposit taking Natenal Housing Bankmg Company as required m termis of parazraph b o Master Direcnion- National Housing

Bankmg Compam- Systematically Jmportant Non-Deposit tahing Company and Deposit taking Company

Resenve Banki Darections. 2016 read with The Resenve

Bank of india ¢ RBI »vade Circular Noo RBI2020-21 73 DORFINGHEC.CC Nec 120003 100E30 202021 on Master Direction - Non-Bankmg Fmancial Compans -
Housmg Finance Company (Resen e Bank) Directions. 2021 dated Februans 17,2021

Asat
March 31,2021

s at
March 31,2020

41 Break up of im estments
Current investments:
al Quoted:

(a) Subsicaries - R

(v Shares: Equity 63,72 -
Preference - -
(i) Debentures and bondls 90.11 -
(i} Units of mutual funds - -
(v} Government secuntics - R
(v)  Others - .
b) Unquoted:
(1) Shares: Equity - -
Preference - -
(i} Debentures and bonds - -
(i) Units of mutual funds - -
(V) Government secuntics - R
{v) Others (pass through certificates) - -
Long-tenm investments {net of proviston)
a1 Quoted:
(i) Shares: Equity - -
Preference - -
(i} Debentures and bonds - &
(i) Units of mutual funds - -
(iv) Government securitics - -
v} Others - -
b Lnguoted:
(i} Shares: Equins - -
Preference - -
(i) Debentures and bonds - -
(i} Unuts of mutual funds - -
(iv) Government securitics -
(v)  Others : Pass through certificates - -
Security receipts 1.600.86 1.044.72
5) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above
Amount net of provisions
Particulars Secured Unseeured Total
As at As at As at \sat As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31. 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31,2020 March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
1. Related parties**

{b) Companies in the same group - - 1.012.97 21.90 1.012.97 21.90
(¢} Other related parties - - = = - N
2. Other than related parties 34.446.29 43.171,22 499.33 1.50 34.945.62 43.178.72
TOTAL 34,446.29 4317122 1.512.30 2940 35.958.59 43.200.62
6) Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long-termy in shares and secunties (both quoted and unquoted)
Particulars Market value/break up or fair value or Book value
NAV (net of provisions)
Asat Asat As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31. 2020
1} Related parties
{a) Subsicharies - - - -
{b) Companics in the same group 1.010.11 1.044.73 1.010.11 104473
{c) Other related parties - - x
2) Other than related parties 590.75 - 590.7%
TOTAL 1.600.86 1.044.73 1,600.86 1.044.73
7) Other information
Asat \s at
Particulars
artieula March 31,2021 March 31,2020
a)  Gross non-perfonning assets
1) Related parties - -
2) Other than related parties 1,275.82 T60.37
b) Net non-performing assets
1) Related partics E ;
//"“;’67— RN 2) Other than related parties 1,144.01 649,98
\ VN
%Q%—’ . t)  Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt - -

Note :

1. As defined n paragraph 2(1){xn) of the Non-Banking Financial Compnay Acceptance of public depositsiReserve bank) Direction. 1998,
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Regulatory Disclosures

(anin)  Disclosure on liguidity risk
As required in accordance with RBI Circular No. RBI 2020121 73 DOR FIN.HFC.CC N0 12003 10136 2020-21 dated February 17.2021 on
Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 read with RBI 2019-20 88
DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No. 102 03.10.001 2019-20 dated November (4. 2019

a)  Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings) As at
March 31, 2021

Number of significant counterparties* 12
Amount of borrowings from significant counterpartics 28,916.36

% of Total deposits NA
69.37%

% of Total liabilities**

* =~ Sigificant counterparty " is defined as a single cownerparty or group of connected or affiliated counterparties accounting in uggregate for

more than 1% of the 1{FC's total liabilities.

* Total habilities ~ refers to total external liabilities (1e. excluding total equin)

b)  Top 20 large deposits

The Company being a Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Housing Finance Company registered with National Housing Bank. does not

accept public deposits.

As at

¢)  Top 10 Borrowings
March 31, 2021

Amount of Borrowings from top 10 lenders 27,978.86
% of Total Borrowings 80.37%
d)  Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product* As at March 31, 2021
Amount LR
’ Liabilities**
Market Borrowings
Non Convertible Debentures 11,676.75 28.01%
Perpetual and Sub-ordinated Debentures 508.61 1.22%
Other Borrowings
Term Loans 21,279.11 51.05%
Waoarking Capital Demand Loan 1,200.00 2.88%

* "significant instrument'product” is defined as a single instrument product of group of similar instruments products which in aggregate
anount to more than 1% of the HFC's total liabilities.

** “Total habilities " refers to total external habilities (1.e. excluding total equity)
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¢l Stock Ratios \s at
March 31, 2021

Commercial papers as a % of total public funds® 0.00%
Commercial papers as a %o of wotal liabilities 0.00%
Comunercial papers as a % of total assets 0.00%
Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a %o of total public funds 0.00%
Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a %o of total liabilities 0.00%
Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total assets 0.00%
Other short-term liabilities**_ if any as a o of total public funds 3.88%
Other short-term liabilities** if any as a % of total liabilitics 3.24%
Other short-term liabilities**, il’ any as a % of total asscts 2.74%

* “Total public funds” refers 10 the aggregate of Debt securinies. Borrowing other than debt securinies and Subordinated habiitics.
** Other short-term liabilities ” refers to the borrowmg n short term m nature,

) Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted the Asset Liability Management Committee and the Risk Management Committee.

The Asset Liability Management Committee, inter alia
Implement and administer guidelines on Asset-Liability Management approved by the Board and its revision, if any:

Monitor the asset lability gap and overcome the asset-liability mismatches, interest risk exposure, ete.; Suategize action to mitigate risk
associated with the asset hability gap:

Develop risk policies and procedures and verify adherence to various risk parameters and prudential fimits: review the risk monitoring system
and ensure effective risk management; and

Ensure that the credit and investinent exposure to any party - Company - group of parties or companies does not exceed the internally set limits
as well as statutory limits as prescribed by Reserve Bank of India from time to time,

Company has a Liquidity Contingency Policy in place to ensure various liquidity parameters are defined and tracked regularly. Liquidity
Management Team is provided with update on expected liquidity shortfalls in Normal as well as Stress scenario.

the Company has ensured maintenance of a Liquidity Cushion in the form of Mutual Funds and liquid fixed deposits with banks, etc. These
assets carry minimal credit risk and can be liquidated in a very short period of time. A comfortable liquidity cushion is maintained of the
borrowings. These would be to take care of immediate obligations while continuing to honour our commitments as a going concern.

There are available lines of credit from banks which are drawable on notice which further augment the available sources of funds.
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(i)
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(xaxiv)

{xxxv)

(xxavi)

(xxxvii)

{(xxxviij)

Regulatory disclosures

Overseas Assets

The Company do not hold any Overseas Assets: (Previons Year Nil)

Off-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored - None (Provious Year Noney

Disclosure of complaints
Customer complaints

(d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year

Particular As at Asat
March 31, 20211 Maich 31, 2020

(a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 3 6
(b) No. of complaints received during the year 214 85
(¢) No. of complaints redressed during the year 212 88
5 3

Company information

The Company has its operations in India and it does not have any joint venture partners with regard 10 Joint ventures and overseas subsidiaries as at and

for the year ended March 31, 202t and March 31, 2020.

Details of transaction with non executive directors

Name of the Director

N\ature of Transaction

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

Mr. P. Vaidyanathan Sitting fees - 0.32
Biswamohan Mahapatra Sitting fees 0.10 -
Sunil Phatarphekar Sitting fees 0.28 -
Mr. P N Venkatachalam Sitting fees 040 0.48

Registration/License obtained from other financial sector regulators - Nil (Previous year Nil).

The Company has not postponed revenue recognition on any item during the current year and previous year,

Disclosure of penaltics imposed by NHB and other regulators - Nil (Previous year Nil),
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54 Other regulatory disclosures

(i) Disclosure under Regulation 33(f) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2013

Related Party transactions

Particulars

Loans and advances in the nature of toans to subsidianes
Loans and advances in the nature of leans to associates

March 31, 2021

As at

\s at
March 31,2020

21.90

Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/compames in which directors are interested 1,009.71
Investments by the loanee in the shares of parent company and subsidiary company. when the
company has made a loan or advance in the nature of loan -
(i) Disclosure Large Corporate as per the applicability criteria given under the SEBI circular SEBI/HO/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/144 dated November 26,

2018.

Initial Disclosure to he made by an entity identified as a Large Corporate

Sr. ! Particulars
Name of the Company
CIN

Wt -

Rating Agency

Name of Stock Exchange in which the fine shall be paid. in case of shortfall in

Outstanding borrowing of Company as on March 31, 2021
Highest Credit Rating during the previous FY along with name of the Credit

> the required borrowing under the framework

Table 1

Details

Edclweiss Housing Finance Limited

U659220H2008PLC 182906
34.813.74
As per Tabe 1 below

BSE LIMITED

Product

Bank Borrowings
Bank Borrowings
Bank Borrowings
Commercial Papers
Commercial Papers
Long Term Sub-Debt
Long Term Sub-Debt
Long Term Sub-Debt
Long Term-NCD
Long Term-NCD
Long Term-NCD
Long Term-NCD
Perpetual - Debt

Credit Rating

ICRA A-/Negative
CRISIL AA-/Negative
CARE A-/Stable
CARE Al-

CRISIL Al-

CARE A-/Stable
CRISIL AA-/Negative
ICRA A-/Negative
BWR AA-/Stable
ICRA A-/Negative
CRISIL AA-/Negative
CARE A-/Stable
BWR A-/Stable

Name of Rating Agency
ICRA Limited
CRISIL

CARE Limited
CARE Limited
CRISIL

CARE Limited
CRISIL

ICRA Limited
Brickwork Ratings
ICRA Limited
CRISIL

CARE Limited
Brickwork Ratings

(iii) Details of incremental borrowings during the year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars Details
Incremental borrowing done in FY (a) 3.750.00
Mandatory borrowing to be done through issuance of debt securities (b} = (25% of a) 937.50
Actual borrowings done through debt securities in FY (c¢) 3.750.00
Shortfall in the mandatory borrowing through debt securities, if' any (d) = (b) - (c) Nil
{If the calculated value is zero or negative. write "nil")

Reasons for short fall, if any, in mandatory borrowings through debt securities NA
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(vii)
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n

Details of moratorium / deferment extended to eligible customers under COVID19 Regulatory package

The company has extended moratorium - determent of term loan installments falling due m moratorium period W its eligible customers who have
opted for meratorium under RBI cireular on *COVID-19 — Regulatory Package’ dated March 2702020 and ‘COVIDEY Regulators Package - Asset
Classitication and Provisioning' dated Aprnil 17, 2020.

For the half year and ycar ended March 31, 2021 (¥ in million)
Respective amounts in SMA overdue categories. where the moratorium determent was extended. in terms of paragraph 2 and 3 2897 80
(Outstanding amount as at March 31, 2021)

Respective amount where asset classification benefits is extended (Outstanding amount as at March 31, 2021) 2.636.50
Provisions made in terms of paragraph 5 of the circular (s per para 4. applicable to NBFC covered under IndAS) 240.70
Provisions adjusted against slippages in terms of paragrph 6 of the circular 143.00
Residual provisions as on March 31, 2021 in terms of paragraph 6 of the circular 97.70

For the halt' vear and year ended March 31, 2020

Respective amounts in SMA/overdue categories, where the moratorium deferment was extended, in terms of paragraph 2 and 3 1897.00
(Outstanding amount as at March 31, 202()

Respective amount where asset classification benefits is extended (Outstanding amount as at March 31, 2020) 445.80
Provisions made in terins of paragraph 3 of the circular (As per para 4, applicable to NBFC covered under IndAS) 2340

Provisions adjusted against slippages in terms of paragrph 6 of the circular

Residual provisions as on March 31, 2020 in terms of paragraph 6 of the circular 23.40

In accordance with the instructions in the RBI circular dated April 7. 2021, all lending institutions shall refund © adjust ‘interest on interest’ to all
borrowers including those who had availed working capital facilities during the moratorium period, irrespective of whether moratorium had been fully
or partially availed, or not availed. Pursuant to these instructions, the Indian Banks Association (IBA) in consultation with other industry participants
bodies published the methodology tor calculation of the amount of such ‘interest on interest’. Accordingly, the Company has estimated Rs. 6.7 million
and made provision for refund / adjustment.

Details of Resolution plan implemented under the Resolution Framework for COVID-19 related stress as per circular dated August 6, 2020.

Type of borrower (A) (B) (C) (D) (E)
Number of exposure to Of (B), Additional funding Increase in
accounts where |accounts mentioned aggregate sanctioned, if any, provisions on
resolution plan at (A) before amount of debt | including between account of the
has been implementation of that was invocation of the implementation of
implemented the plan converted into plan and the resolution plan
under this other securities implementation
window
Personal Loans 42 119.40 - - 10.80
Corporate persons* - - - - -
Of which, MSMEs - - = = =
Others - - - - -
Total 42 119.40 - - 10.80

*As defined in Section 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016
I'here are no amount due and outstanding to be credited to Imvestor Education and Protection Fund as at March 31. 2021 and as at March 31, 2020

Figures of the previous year have been regrouped  reclassified wherever necessary to conform 1o current vear presentation

As per our report of even date attached.

For S.R.Batliboi & Co.LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants 2 Edelweiss llousin;ﬁ;i:w
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